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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biotechnologmpany focused on designing, optimizing and devefppovel small molecule
pharmaceuticals that block key enzymes essentialdiocer, cardiovascular and autoimmune diseasksia infections. Our most advanced
drug candidate, BCX-1777, is an investigationaimginucleoside phosphorylase (PNP) inhibitor faertileatment of T-cell mediated
disorders.

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to use structure-basegdérsign technologies to develop innovative, snrmallecule pharmaceuticals to treat a
variety of diseases and disorders. We focus oug dewelopment efforts on building potent, selecinfgbitors of enzymes associated with
targeted diseases. Enzymes are proteins that oaes@ble biological reactions necessary for tlogssion of the disease or disorder. The
specific enzymes on which we focus are called emztargets. BioCryst aims to design compounds tlilhinkibit an enzyme target by fittin
the active site of a particular enzyme. Inhibitrapans interfering with the functioning of an enzytaiget, thereby stopping or slowing the
progression of the disease or disorder. The prat@fements of our strategy are:

» Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for Bevelopment of SmeMolecule Pharmaceuticals We use our technical
expertise and network of academic and industryamigtto evaluate and select promising enzyme tatgdicense for the development
of smal-molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tatfysttsneet as many of the following criteria as fiaes

« serve important functions in disease pathways;
* have known animal or cell-based models that woelthdicative of results in humans;

» address large potential markets and significantetrmedical needs, including pursuing niche markétsre the results have
potential application to broader markets and ne

» have multiple potential clinical applications; and
« offer rapid development and commercialization opjdties.

» Focus on High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug DgsiTechnologiesWe focus our drug discovery activities and expemds on
applications of structure-based drug design tedyies to design and develop drug candidates. Stexdased drug design is a process
by which we design a drug candidate through detaitealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglickate must inhibit in order to
stop the progression of the disease or disorderb#lieve that structure-based drug design is a dfaleol for efficient development
of small-molecule drug candidates that have therg@l to be safe, effective and relatively inexgiea to manufacture. Our structure-
based drug design technologies typically allowauddsign and synthesize multiple drug candidatsitihibit the same enzyme target.
We believe this strategy can lead to broad patesieption and enhance the competitive advantagesrafompounds

» Develop or License Inhibitors that are Promising @didates for CommercializatiorWe test multiple compounds to identify those
that are most promising for clinical developmeng Wase our selection of promising development ckatels on desirable product



characteristics, such as initial indications oksafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtsyw allows us to eliminate unpromisi
candidates from consideration sooner without inngrsubstantial clinical costs. In addition, wees¢ldrug candidates on the basis of
their potential for relatively efficient Phase IdaRhase Il clinical trials that require fewer patgeto initially indicate safety and
efficacy. We will consider, however, more complexdidates with longer development cycles if weebaithat they offer promising
commercial opportunitie!

An important element of our business strategy isotatrol fixed costs and overhead through contngcéind entering into license
agreements with other parties. We maintain a stiieathcorporate infrastructure that focuses onstrangest areas of expertise. By
contracting with other specialty organizations,bedieve that we can control costs, enable our deuglidates to reach the market more
quickly and reduce our business risk. Key elemehtair contracting strategy include:

» Entering Into Relationships with Academic Instituins and Biotechnology CompanieMany academic institutions and biotechnol

companies perform extensive research on the maleand structural biology of potential drug devehamt targets. By entering into
relationships with these institutions, we believe ean significantly reduce the time, cost and riekslved in drug development. Our
collaborative relationships with such organizatiomsy lead to the licensing of one or more drugdesg@r compounds. Upon licensing
a drug target or promising compound from one o$¢hiastitutions, the scientists from the institattgpically become working partners
as members of our structubased drug design teams. We believe this makesngseaattractive development partner to these tsts
In addition, we collaborate with outside expertainumber of areas, including crystallography, maler modeling, combinatorial
chemistry, biology, pharmacology, oncology, cardgyl, immunology and infectious diseases. Thesalgotitions enable us to
complement our internal capabilities without addiogtly overhead. We believe this strategy allowsousave valuable time and
expense, and further diversify and strengthen oufgio of drug candidates. An example of suctolaborative relationship is the
arrangement that we have with The University ofbalama at Birmingham, or UAB, which has resultechim initiation of several of our
early drug development progran

Developing Drug Development Candidates or Licensifigem to Other PartiesWe generally plan to advance drug candidates thr
initial and/or earlystage drug development. For larger disease inditatiequiring complex clinical trials, our stratagyo license dru
candidates to pharmaceutical or biotechnology pastfor final development and global marketing. Mééeve partnerships are a good
source of development payments, license fees, toilegpayments and royalties. They also reducedbis @and risks, and increase the
effectiveness, of late-stage product developmegtlatory approval, manufacturing and marketing.d#keve that focusing on
discovery and early-stage drug development whitebigng from our partners’ proven development anchmercialization expertise
will reduce our internal expenses and allow usaweeha larger number of drug candidates progrelsgeestage drug development.
However, after establishing a lead product candidae are willing to license that candidate durng stage of the development
process we determine to be beneficial to the compad to the ultimate development and commercitidimaof that drug candidate. F
some smaller niche disease indications marketsnayechoose to complete development, manufactutewdere appropriate market
and distribute any approved drugs ourselves, ss&Cx-1777 for I-cell leukemias

Products in Development

The following table summarizes BioCryst's developitngrojects as of February 27, 2004:

Program and Candidate Delivery Development Worldwide

Disease Category/Indication Form Stage Rights

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-1777) Intravenous Phase | BioCryst
Oncology / 7-cell cancer: Oral Phase BioCryst

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208) Oral Preclinical BioCryst
Autoimmune diseases / Psoria

Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla Inhibitors Oral Lead Optimization BioCryst

Cardiovascular / Coagulation, inflammation
Oncology / Angiogenesis

Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors Oral Lead Optimization BioCryst
Viral / Hepatitis C

T-cell Related Disease



Overview. The link between T-cell proliferation and the ipernucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzyme wstgdiscovered
approximately twenty-five years ago when a patietip was genetically deficient in PNP, exhibitedited T-cell activity, but reasonably
normal activity of other immune functions. In othpatients lacking PNP activity, the T-cell popubatiwvas selectively depleted; however, B-
cell function tended to be normal. Based on thaskrfgs and the results of cell culture studiehjbiiing PNP produces selective suppression
of T-cells without significantly impairing the fution of other cells.

The human immune system employs specialized ¢edkiding T-cells, to control infection by recoginig and attacking disease-causing
viruses, bacteria and parasites. T-cells are an#éabpart of the body’s immune system that serdeial purpose to both orchestrate and
participate in the body’s immune response. Fomtlost part, this system works flawlessly to prothetbody. However, when @ells multiply
uncontrollably, T-cell proliferative diseases, unding T-cell cancers, occur.

Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemid@he most common form of leukemia in childrendste lymphoblastic leukemia (also known as ALL).
According to the American Cancer Society, 3,830 rages (adult and children combined) will be diagmbin the United States in 2004.
ALL results from an acquired injury to the DNA oiingle cell in the bone marrow.

T-cell Lymphoma Lymphoma is a general term for a group of canttesoriginate in the lymphatic system. About B @&mericans wil
be diagnosed with a non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma in 2884 approximately 15% of these will be considerezell lymphomas. T-cell
lymphoma results when alymphocyte (a type of white blood cell) undergoenalignant change and begins to multiply, evemnjuaibwding
out healthy cells and creating tumors, which ematg lymph nodes and invade other sites in thg.b@dtaneous T-cell lymphoma (CTCL)
is a primary skin neoplasm and accounts for nézt of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune DiseasBsseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid arthrititjpie sclerosis, and Crohn'’s appear to have
activated T-cells as a major part of their path@ges Therefore, inhibition and/or elimination ath cells could have a profound and
beneficial effect on these diseases.

PNP Inhibition. PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-aell proliferation, because it is necessary tamaén normal DNA
synthesis in T-cells. Selective inhibition of PN&shan accumulation effect on certain nucleosided)ding deoxyguanosine. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to demanosine triphosphate. A high
concentration of deoxyguanosine triphosphate irllsdlocks DNA synthesis and thus inhibits cellision.

Our PNP Inhibitor(s)

Background In June 2000, we licensed a series of potenbitdns of purine nucleoside phosphorylase from Allignstein College of
Medicine of Yeshiva University (AECOM) and IndusirResearch, Ltd, New Zealand (IRL). The lead draigdidate from this collaboration,
BCX-1777, is a more potent inhibitor of human lyropite proliferation than other previously known PiXRibitors. Extensive preclinical
studies and early patient data indicate that BCX71dan modulate T-cell activities. BCX-1777 is andstigational PNP inhibitor for the
potential treatment of T-cell leukemias and lymplasm

During 2002, we exercised the option to add a nemypound, BCX-4208, to the series of inhibitors biFPlicensed from AECOM and
IRL. Preclinical results indicate that BCX-4208aisnore potent inhibitor than BCX-1777. We plan évelop BCX-4208 for autoimmune
diseases such as psoriasis and rheumatoid arthritis

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-1777)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravenous fornatlon of BCX-1777 is a Phase | clinical trial fatjents with relapsed or refractory T-cell
acute lymphoblastic leukemia (ALL) and T-cell lynggha. The Phase | trial is an open-label dose-dsmalstudy of BCX1777 in relapsed
refractory aggressive T-cell malignancies,

which are among the most difficult cancers to tlgaturrent therapies. Because of the clinicallteseen to this point and some additional
testing by our colleagues at the M.D. Anderson €afenter, we started three additional trials i62fr refractory patients with other types
of hematologic malignancies, cutaneous T-cell lyowph, and solid tumors. Preclinical studies at thB.M\nderson Cancer Center indicate
that BCX-1777 induces the same biochemical chaimgearious other types of leukemia cells that @sponsible for the inhibition of T-
leukemia cells, which suggest that BCX-1777 magben more broadly applicable than originally expdctnitial Phase | clinical results in
patients with B-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemévé been encouraging, and we plan to pursue additi®-cell leukemia clinical studies
during 2004.

Current Development Strategy



BCX-1777 Clinical Development for Aggressive T-balignancies The Phase | clinical trial was developed in closkaboration with
experts at The University of Texas M. D. Anders@n€er Center. Despite encouraging results obsevitacbther T-cell specific agents, the
prognosis for patients with relapsed or refractenkemia or lymphoma is poor and treatment optiensain limited. The goal of the Phase |
clinical trial is to determine the safety, biochealiand metabolic profile and therapeutic effecdpiced by BCX-1777 as it relates to the
proposed mechanism of action in the inhibition ifliferating T-lymphocytes in patients with T-c@lLL or T-cell ymphoma. Our strategy
for future development of BCX-1777 is to pursuehvitie FDA both orphan drug and fast-track designatiWe are also designing a Phase Il
trial for intravenous BCX-1777, which, assumingaessful completion of the current trials, we plafégin in early 2004 to treat patients
with T-cell leukemias. We also plan to initiateexrsnd Phase Il trial in early 2004 with intraven8@&X-1777 for treatment of patients with
cutaneous T-cell ymphoma (CTCL). Our current intsrfor BioCryst itself to market and distribut€R-1777 in the United States for
treatment of T-cell cancers.

Early Phase | studies with oral BCX-1777 are cuiyen progress at the Cleveland Clinic, and wenglainitiate a Phase I/1l CTCL
clinical trial with oral BCX-1777 during the firétalf of 2004.

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208)
Overview

We believe that the results to date of our Phasal$ of BCX-1777 support the principle that intitin of PNP has a direct effect on
proliferation of activated T-lymphocytes. We arawndeveloping BCX-4208, a second-generation PNPRitd, as a drug candidate for the
treatment of T-cell mediated autoimmune diseasefjding psoriasis. Although BCX-4208 and BCX-1&f& both investigational PNP
inhibitors, BCX-4208 differs from BCX-1777 in siditant ways. For example, BCX-4208 is more poteiitt) the ability to modulate T-cell
activity for longer period of time. Thus, BCX-4268s potential advantages over BCX-1777 for tharireat of diseases requiring long-term,
chronic administration of a PNP inhibitor.

Current Development Strategy

During 2003, we conducted a series of precliniaadies of BCX-4208 and have begun preclinical tokagy studies, with the goal of
advancing BCX-4208 into Phase | clinical developtfentreatment of patients with psoriasis in teeand half of 2004.

Tissue Factor/Factor Vila
Overview

A series of complicated reactions take place inbibiy whenever a blood clot begins to form. Theanagitiator of these reactions is an
enzyme system called the tissue factor/factor YIR/FVIla) complex. Animal tests show that variankibitors of the TF/FVIla complex ce
minimize blood clot formation as well as inflammgtoesponses. This sort of inhibition has beeretégtith a number of biological agents
including the natural inhibitor of the pathway, #yetic peptides and protein inhibitors, and antibscgainst tissue factor. However, there are
no small molecule drugs currently on the market ifii@rvene at the TF/FVlla level.

We believe that small molecule inhibitors of TF/F/imay potentially be useful for treating acutear@mry syndromes and complications
associated with cardiovascular procedures, sucbrasary angioplasty and
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stent insertions, because any type of damageeadestand blood vessels exposes tissue factorhwthén triggers clot formation. Myocardial
infarction, unstable angina, and restenosis duaimdjfollowing angioplasty procedures are all pagteatment targets. In addition, tissue
factor is involved in angiogenesis, or new bloodset growth, and inhibitors of the TF/FVIla compkme believed to have potential as anti-
angiogenesis agents for use in oncology.

Background We have an agreement with Sunol Molecular Carxpedite the discovery of new drug candidategyded to inhibit
TF/FVlla. Under the terms of this agreement, Swugplies us protein for our drug design program.

Current Development Strategy

We are continuing to design and synthesize grofiperapounds that are potent and selective inhibitTF/FVIla and further
optimization is ongoing to identify a compound fweclinical development of a TF/FVlla inhibitor @mal form.

Hepatitis C



Overview

Hepatitis C virus (HCV) infection has been desatibethe New England Journal of Medicine as théomé& most common chronic blood-
borne infection. Up to 3% of the world’s populatioas been infected with HCV. According to the NaéibCenters for Disease Control, as
many as 75-85% of those infected with HCV will hayeonic infection and 70% of those will developatic liver disease. While there are
several approved treatments for chronic HCV usingrabination therapy of interferon and ribavirinete are some potentially severe side
effects to these treatments.

Background In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemyrf Emory University related to the hepatitis Cymotrase target associated
with hepatitis C viral infections. Under the terofshe agreement, the research investigators frororl provide us with materials and
technical insight into the target.

Current Development Strategy

We are targeting HCV polymerase through collabweesgind in-house efforts. Specifically, we are feclien development of orally active
inhibitors against the RNA-dependent RNA polymer&@mpetition for this target is less intense tfarthe HCV protease target and history
suggests the likelihood of designing a useful iftbibagainst this target may be better than fomttoee difficult protease.

Currently, we are designing, synthesizing and singepotential compounds against HCV polymerasecBipally, our scientists are
measuring the potency and ability of potential dcagdidates to block the replication of HCV polyass in vitro, or in test tubes. These
experiments measure the potency of each selectedaimnd’s ability to block replication. Advancedeening is also underway to measure
the fit of promising compounds in the HCV polymerastive site using X-ray crystallography and cotapmolecular modeling. The goal is
to identify a series of compounds that are poteritiro inhibitors of the active site of the HCVIpmerase for further testing and lead
optimization.

We also have agreements in place with the Natilrstitute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, atwfiThe National Institutes of Healt
and the U.S. Army Medical Research Institute oéttibus Diseases to assay promising inhibitors fiteenHCV polymerase program for
activity against Severe Acute Respiratory Syndr¢8%RS), West Nile and Ebola viruses.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structure-based drug design is a drug discoveryoagph by which we design synthetic compounds fretaitbd structural knowledge of
the active sites of enzyme targets associatedpaitticular diseases. Enzymes are proteins thatsacatalysts for many vital biological
reactions. Our goal generally is to design a comgdhat will fit in the active site of an enzymabdtactive site of an enzyme is the area into
which a chemical or biological molecule fits totiaie a biochemical reaction) and thereby interfeita the progression of disease.
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Our structure-based drug design involves the agfpio of both traditional biology and medicinal afistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compnrtedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actiteeciaracteristics of the enzymes that controlitzilbiology.

We believe that structure-based drug design teclgies are superior to drug screening techniquesd@tifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and maestilucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedit design a better drug to interact
with the enzyme. In addition, the structural datéamed by X-ray crystallographic analysis allovd#idnal analysis and compound
modification at each stage of the biological evaara This capability makes structure-based drugjgiea powerful tool for efficient
development of drugs that are highly specific fartigular enzyme target sites.

Research and Development

We initiated our research and development prograt®86, with drug synthesis beginning in 1987. \eehassembled a scientific
research staff with expertise in a broad base wéacked research technologies including proteinHaodstry, X-ray crystallography,
chemistry and pharmacology. Our research facilitiekide protein biochemistry and organic synth&ieratories, testing facilities, X-ray
crystallography, computer and graphics equipmedtfaailities to make drug candidates on a smalkesca

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002608, we spent an aggregate of $40.1 million oaaeh and development.
Approximately $26.4 million of that amount was spen in-house research and development, and $1iBi@dmwas spent on contract
research and development.

Collaborative Relationships



Corporate Alliances

Sunol Molecular Corp In April 1999, we entered into an agreement W@itnol. This agreement requires Sunol to conduetaret and
supply us with protein targets for drug designxpeglite the discovery of new drug candidates desida inhibit tissue factor/factor Vlla for
our cardiovascular program.

Academic Alliances

The University of Alabama at Birminghard/e have had a close relationship with The Unitief Alabama at Birmingham (UAB),
since our formation. Our Chairman and Chief Exeeu®fficer, Dr. Charles E. Bugg, was the previoure&or of the UAB Center for
Macromolecular Crystallography, and our Presid€hief Operating Officer and Medical Director, DrClaude Bennett, was the former
President of UAB, the former Chairman of the Depantt of Medicine at UAB and a former Chairman @& Bepartment of Microbiology at
UAB. Several of our consultants are employed by UNBB has a large X-ray crystallography center vafiproximately 110 full-time staff
members and approximately $15 million in researamts and contract funding in 2003. Several ofearty programs originated at UAB.

We currently have agreements with UAB for influemzairaminidase and complement inhibitors. Undetdhas of these agreements,
UAB performed specific research for us in returnrissearch payments and license fees. UAB hasagtarst certain rights to any discoveries
in these areas resulting from research developadA®y or jointly developed with us. We have agreegay royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymeateived from other third-party collaborators. Wedaompleted the research under the
UAB influenza agreement. We funded the researcgraro under the complement inhibitors agreemenutjitdvarch 2002, which entitled
to an assignment of, or a right to an exclusiverlge for, any inhibitors of specified complemerryenes developed by UAB scientists during
the period of support or for a one-year periodeghéier. These two agreements have initial 25-yeyang, are automatically renewable for five-
year terms throughout the life of the last patert are terminable by us upon tr-months’ notice and by UAB under certain circumsts

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva énsity and Industrial Research, Ltd, New Zealaha June 2000, we licensed a series
of potent inhibitors of purine nucleoside phosphasg, or PNP, from Albert Einstein College of Madécof Yeshiva University and
Industrial Research, Ltd., New Zealand. The leaddr

candidate from this collaboration is BCX-1777. Wy the rights to develop and ultimately distribtinis, or any other, drug candidate that
might arise from research on these inhibitors.és@mple, in 2003 we obtained the rights to anatberpound from this series, BCX-4208,
which is currently in preclinical development. Wavie agreed to pay certain milestone payments fardudevelopment of these inhibitors,
pay certain royalties on sales of any resultinglpot, and to share in future payments received fotmar third-party collaborators, if any. We
can terminate this agreement at any time by gigidiglays advance notice.

Emory University. In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemynf Emory University related to the hepatitis Cypoérase target
associated with hepatitis C viral infections. Unthey terms of the agreement, the research invéstgyaiom Emory provide us with materials
and technical insight into the target. We have egjte pay Emory royalties on sales of any resulpiragiuct and to share in future payments
received from other third party collaborators,niffaWe can terminate this agreement at any timgi\ing 90 days advance notice.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on our ability bbain and enforce patent protection for our prosluctethods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade sgcaeid operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havegightertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds weedarveloping. We actively seek, when appropriatgegtion for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by meant/@&. and foreign patents, trademarks and contrbattengements. In addition, we rely
upon trade secrets and contractual arrangemeptstiect certain of our proprietary information, prietary technology and products.

As of January 31, 2004, we have been issued 21pat8nts that expire between 2009 and 2021 anddlzdé to our PNP and
neuraminidase inhibitor compounds. We have licefisedadditional patents and two pending patemsifAlbert Einstein College of
Medicine of Yeshiva University and one patent frmory University. We have also filed patent applmas for new processes to prepare
certain PNP inhibitors. Additionally, we have 1688Upatent applications pending related to PNP,amimidase, RNA viral polymerase,
paramyxovirus neuraminidase, and serine protedmigiiors. Our pending applications may not resulissued patents, and our patents may
not provide us with sufficient protection againgtrpetitive products or otherwise be commerciallgikable.

Our success is also dependent upon the skills, ketdge and experience of our scientific and techmiessonnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we reqalfemployees, consultants, advisors and collabmsdb enter into confidentiality agreements
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infieation to anyone outside of our company and requiigclosure and assignment to us of
their ideas, developments, discoveries and invastibhese agreements may not provide adequatetiootéor our trade secrets, know-how
or other proprietary information in the event ofamauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful tgu@ent by others of such informatic



Marketing and Sales

We currently plan to market, distribute and selDBC777 in the U.S. for use in treatment of T-celhcers. Although our general strategy
is to rely on major marketing companies for worldevcommercialization of most products we may dgyele believe that we can manage
the highly specialized oncology market for BCX-17%¥ithin the U.S. Most patients with advanced T-ecedllignancies in the U.S. are treated
at major referral cancer centers, and we expetitlay of these centers will be participating im Bhase Il trials and will thus be familiar
with BCX-1777 if it reaches the market. However, lagk experience in marketing, distributing andisglpharmaceutical products. Our
general strategy is to rely on collaborators, Igsss or arrangements with others to provide fortheketing, distribution and sales of
products we may develop. We may not be able tdksiiaand maintain acceptable commercial arrangésneith collaborators, licensees or
others to perform such activities.

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industriesraemsely competitive. Many companies, includimgtéchnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivitees similar to ours, including research amelopment of drugs for the treatment of
infectious, inflammatory and cardiovascular diseas®ed disorders. Many of these companies haveasuladly greater financial and other
resources, larger research and development saaffismore extensive marketing and manufacturingnizgtions than we do. In addition,
some of them have considerable experience in piealitesting, clinical trials and other regulatagproval procedures. There are also
academic institutions, governmental agencies aner aesearch organizations that are conductingrelsén areas in which we are working.
They may also market commercial products, eithetheir own or through collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant competitiondoy of the pharmaceutical products we plan to agzeCompanies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprtsvand commence commercial sales of their prochefisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. In addition,es@V pharmaceutical and biotechnology firms, intlgdnajor pharmaceutical companies
specialized structure-based drug design compames, announced efforts in the field of structuredabdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
hepatitis C, and tissue factor/factor Vlla.

In order to compete successfully, we must devetopnetary positions in patented drugs for therdipenarkets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional resedreltegjies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.

Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceutical and biotedgyoindustries in the United States, and our damfates are subject to extensive
and rigorous domestic government regulations pa@ommercialization. The FDA regulates, among iothimgs, the development, testing,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-keeping, liagestorage, approval, advertising, promotiorte sand distribution of pharmaceutical
products. In foreign countries, our products ase aubject to extensive regulation by foreign goreents. These government regulations will
be a significant factor in the production and mérgof any pharmaceutical products that we devef@ilure to comply with applicable FC
and other regulatory requirements at any stageduhie regulatory process may subject us to sarg;tincluding:

* delays;

e warning letters;

* fines;

e product recalls or seizures;

 injunctions;

e penalties;

 refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval appliceti
« total or partial suspension of production;

« civil penalties;



« withdrawals of previously approved marketing apgtiiens; and

« criminal prosecutions.

The regulatory review and approval process is lgngixpensive and uncertain. Before obtaining r@guy approvals for the commercial
sale of any products, we or our licensees must detrate that our product candidates are safe dadtiek for use in humans. The approval
process takes many years, substantial expenseberiagurred and significant time may be devoteditacal development.
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Before testing potential candidates in humans, avey@ut laboratory and animal studies to determsafety and biological activity. After
completing preclinical trials, we must file an istigational new drug application, including a preglato begin clinical trials, with the FDA.
We have filed nine investigational new drug appiaas to date and plan to file, or rely on futuetpers to file, additional investigational
new drug applications in the future as our potéuiiag candidates advance to that stage of devedaprithirty days after filing an
investigational new drug application, a Phase | &murclinical trial can start unless the FDA placéshl on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determine safetysmall group of patients or healthy volunte®ve also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our drugladates at different doses. After we complete tiitgal trials, we conduct Phase Il trials
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiosa in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucagsafe or our licensees conduct Phase 11l tt
to verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase 11l trials are required for FDA approwahtarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb mollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval for treatment of a particudésease. For some clinical indications that apeeeially serious and for which there are
effective treatments, such as refractory cancergditional approval can be obtained following Phihseals.

Initiation and completion of the clinical trial pbes are dependent on several factors includingghtimat are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials are dependent on pagarollment, but the rate at which patients drinathe study depends on:

« the size of the patient population we intend tatire
 the availability of patients;
« the willingness of patients to participate; and

« the patient meeting the eligibility criteria.

Delays in planned patient enrollment may resuih@reased expense and longer development timelines.

After completion of the clinical trials of a produgve or our licensees must submit a new drug egidin to the FDA for marketing
approval before commercialization of the produtte FDA may not grant approval on a timely basisf @ll. The FDA, as a result of the
Food and Drug Administration Modernization Act &9, has six months to review and act upon licapgdications for priority therapeutics
that are for life-threatening or unmet medical ree&tandard reviews can take between one and tars,y&nd can even take longer if
significant questions arise during the review psscd he FDA may withdraw any required approvalseaobtained.

In addition to clinical development regulations, ara our contract manufacturers and collaboratarst womply with the applicable FDA
current good manufacturing practice (“GMP”) regigas. GMP regulations include requirements relatonquality control and quality
assurance as well as the corresponding mainteredimeeords and documentation. Manufacturing faesitare subject to inspection by the
FDA. Such facilities must be approved before we usathem in commercial manufacturing of our péééproducts. We or our contract
manufacturers may not be able to comply with thaieable GMP requirements and other FDA regulateguirements. If we or our contract
manufacturers fail to comply, our business, finahcondition and results of operations will be mialey adversely affected.

Human Resources

As of February 27, 2004, we had 46 employees, @wB5 were engaged in research and developmeritlanére in general and
administrative functions. Our scientific staff, @dwhom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, has diversiBggerience in biochemistry,
pharmacology, X-ray crystallography, synthetic aiigachemistry, computational chemistry, and meditghemistry. We consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.



Scientific Advisory Board and Consultants

Our scientific advisory board is comprised of fa@entific advisors who are leaders in certainwfaore disciplines or who otherwise
have specific expertise in our therapeutic focesasrWe also have consulting agreements with a euaflother scientists with expertise in
our core disciplines or who are specialists in @®s or treatments on which we focus. The sciemtifizisory board meets as a group at
scheduled meetings and the consultants meet negedntly, on an individual basis, with our scigatffersonnel and management to discuss
our ongoing research and drug discovery and dexedop projects. The scientific advisory board caissi$ the following individuals:

Name Position

Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. (Chairman) Professor of Medicine and the Director of The Ursity Of Alabama at
Birmingham Comprehensive Cancer Cen

Gordon N. Gill, M.D. Professor of Medicine and Chair of the Faculty a8 Biomedical
Sciences at the University of California, San Di&gphool of Medicine

Lorraine J. Gudas, Ph.D. Professor and Chairman of the Department of Phastogg of Cornell

Medical College and the Revlon Pharmaceutical Bexfeof
Pharmacology and Toxicolog

Herbert A. Hauptman, Ph.D. President of the Hauptman-Woodward Medical Reselastitute, Inc.
(formerly the Medical Foundation (Buffalo), Incand Research Profes:
in Biophysical Sciences at the State UniversitiNeiv York (Buffalo).
Recipient of the Nobel Prize in Chemistry (19¢

Hamilton O. Smith, M.D. Professor, Molecular Biology and Genetics Departna¢he Johns
Hopkins University School of Medicine, retired, aBdientific Director o
The Institute for Bioenergy Alternatives. Recipiefthe Nobel Prize in
Medicine (1978)

The scientific advisors and the consultants amalvarsed for their expenses and receive nominal casipensation in connection with
their service and have been issued options andéres of common stock. The scientific advisorstaedconsultants are all employed by or
have consulting agreements with entities other tlrmrsome of which may compete with us in the futiliihe scientific advisors and the
consultants are expected to devote only a smdiilqpoof their time to our business, although noc#fetime commitment has been
established. They are not expected to participetieedy in our affairs or in the development of deachnology. Several of the institutions with
which the scientific advisors and the consultansadfiliated may adopt new regulations or polidiest limit the ability of the scientific
advisors and the consultants to consult with ug. [dhs of the services of the scientific advisord the consultants could adversely affect us
to the extent that we are pursuing research orlder®nt in areas relevant to the scientific adwsand consultants’ expertise. To the extent
members of our scientific advisory board or thestdtants have consulting arrangements with or becemployed by any of our competitc
we could be materially adversely affected.

Any inventions or processes independently discal/byethe scientific advisors or the consultants matybecome our property and will
probably remain the property of such persons @uch persons’ employers. In addition, the institugi with which the scientific advisors and
the consultants are affiliated may make availdidéeresearch services of their personnel, incluthiegscientific advisors and the consultants,
to our competitors pursuant to sponsored reseapeements. We require the scientific advisors aeccbnsultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements which prohibit the distlre of confidential information to anyone outsid@ur company and require disclosure
and assignment to us of their ideas, developmdisispveries or inventions. However, our competitoes/ gain access to trade secrets and
other proprietary information developed by us aistldsed to the scientific advisors and the coasidt

10

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and principal researmatility are located in 57,350 square feet of leasféide space in Riverchase
Industrial/Research Park in Birmingham, Alabamae Tgase runs through June 30, 2010 with an optideatse for an additional five years at
current market rates. We believe that our facdiiee adequate for our current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURIT Y HOLDERS

None.



PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company’s common stock trades on the NasdaigmddtMarket tier of The Nasdaq Stock MarketSM unthie symbol BCRX. The
following table sets forth the low and high priedour common stock as reported by Nasdaq for gaelnter in 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002

Low High Low High
First quartel $ .82 $2.0C $3.6¢ $6.1(C
Second quarte 1.2¢ 4.51 .60 4.82
Third quartel 2.8¢ 7.37 71 1.5
Fourth quarte 6.0C 9.41 .85 1.3C

The last sale price of the common stock on Febr@@rn2004 as reported by Nasdaq was $6.87 per.share
As of March 3, 2004, there were approximately 38Rlérs of record of our common stock.
The Company has never paid cash dividends andrademticipate paying cash dividends in the forabkefuture.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Statement

of

Operations

Data:
Total

revenues

(See

attached

financial

statements

and notes $ 1,634 $ 1,77¢ $11,15¢ $ 7,661 $ 5,32¢
Research ar

developme

expense: 11,52: 15,47: 13,09: 9,59( 7,68:
Loss before

cumulative

effect of

change in

accounting

principle (12,700 (16,929 (4,98¢) (5,490 (5,299¢)
Cumulative

effect of

change in

accounting

principle 0 0 0 (6,08¢) 0
Net loss $ (12,700 $(16,929 $ (4,986 $(11,579 $ (5,29¢)
Amounts pe

common

share:

Loss before




cumulative
effect of
change in
accounting

principle ¢ (.72 $ (.96 ¢

Cumulative
effect of
change in
accounting
principle .0C .0C

$  (31)

(.35)

$ (39

.0C

Net loss pe

share § (79 § (99 §

$ (.66

$ (39

Weighted
average
shares
outstandin

(in
thousands 17,70:¢ 17,64:

17,46

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

15,38(

2003 2002

2000

1999

Balance

Sheet

Data:
Cash, cash

equivalent

and

securities $ 25,73 $ 36,16!
Total asset 30,09¢ 41,30(
Accumulatet

deficit (104,66() (91,960
Total

stockholders’

equity 28,44 40,12¢

$ 65,58
70,82¢

(70,04%)

61,48
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$ 70,047
73,381

(58,46

71,40¢

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certastesnents of a forward-looking nature relating ttufie events or the future financial
performance of the Company. Such statements ayepoadictions and the actual events or results diffgr materially from the result
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factbat could cause or contribute to such differanoelude those discussed below as well
as those discussed in other filings made by thepgaomwith the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Overview

Since our inception in 1986, we have been engagegsiearch and development activities and orgaaimdtefforts, including:

« identification and licensing of enzyme targets;

 drug discovery;

structure-based design of drug candidates;

small-scale synthesis of compounds;

» conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials;



 recruiting our scientific and management personnel;
 establishing laboratory facilities; and
* raising capital.

Our revenues have generally been limited to licéess, milestone payments, interest income, arldtmmiation research and developm
fees. The Company recognizes revenue in accordaitité&SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue RecognitidtSAB No. 104”).
Research and development revenue on cost-reimbardexgreements is recognized as expenses areddcu to contractual limits.
Research and development fees, license fees aadtarie payments are recognized as revenue whearhi@gs process is complete, the
Company has no further continuing performance aliligns and has completed its performance unddethes of the agreement, in
accordance with SAB No. 104. License fees and toilespayments received under licensing agreemieatste related to future performa
are deferred and taken into income as earned beerdtimated drug development period. The Compasybt received any revenues or
royalties from the sale of licensed pharmaceupecatiucts. It could be several years, if ever, =foe will recognize significant revenue frc
royalties received pursuant to our license agre¢srmmrevenue directly from product sales. Futerenues, if any, are likely to fluctuate
substantially from quarter to quarter.

We have incurred operating losses since our incep@®ur accumulated deficit at December 31, 2008 $14.7 million. We will require
substantial expenditures relating to the developgrakaur current and future drug candidates. Duthegthree years ended December 31,
2003, we spent 34.1% of our research and developexpenses on contract research and developmehiding:

* payments to consultants;

« funding of research at academic institutions;

« large scale synthesis of compounds;

« preclinical studies;

e engaging investigators to conduct clinical trials;

 hiring contract research organizations to monitat gather data on clinical trials; and

 using statisticians to evaluate the results oficdittrials.

The above expenditures for contract research anelgment for our current and future drug candiglatél vary from quarter to quarter
depending on the status of our research and dawelafpprojects. For example, on June 25, 2002, weuwrced preliminary Phase 11 clinical
trial data for peramivir, our investigational oral
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influenza neuraminidase inhibitor. The trial indaé no statistically significant difference in themary efficacy endpoint between groups
treated with peramivir and groups treated with ebax Based on these data, we discontinued theajeweht of peramivir. During the first
nine months of 2002, our cash expenses relatddsdrial were approximately $4 million. After temmating the development of peramivir, 1
Company streamlined its operations, reducing itskfeoce from 75 employees to 45 employees in otd@onserve its resources and provide
a longer timeframe in which to advance its othegpams.

Changes in our existing and future research andldement and collaborative relationships will alspact the status of our research and
development projects. Although we may, in some dse able to control the timing of developmentaemges, in part by accelerating or
decelerating certain of these costs, many of thests will be incurred irrespective of whether we able to discover drug candidates or
obtain collaborative partners for commercializatids a result, we believe that quarter-to-quartenparisons of our financial results are not
necessarily meaningful and should not be reliechigsoan indication of future performance. If wé taimeet the research, clinical and
financial expectations of securities analysts awvéstors, it could have a material adverse effadhe price of our common stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2002

Collaborative and other research and developmeeniges increased in 2003 to $653,000 compared ito th@ same period last year,
primarily due to a payment from 3-Dimensional Phacguticals Inc. (3DP), a wholly-owned subsidiaryalinson & Johnson, for certain
rights related to complement system inhibitors @igred during the term of our collaborative reskagreement. In addition, our revenues
include $153,000 from the National Institutes ofaHlle related to the $300,000 first year grant neeeiduring 2003 for our hepatitis C
inhibitor program. Interest income for 2003 was G880, a 44.8% decrease compared to $1,775,00W0 T his decrease was due 1



reduction in cash and a lower interest rate enwiremt in 2003.

Research and development expenses decreased 2688%,522,000 for 2003 from $15,473,000 in 2002 dlacrease in expenses during
2003 was primarily due to the costs incurred by@ist during 2002 to complete a Phase IlI clintcial for peramivir, a drug candidate that
was discontinued in June 2002. In addition, persboosts were 34% lower during 2003 as a resuti@feduction in our staff following the
termination of the peramivir program.

General and administrative expenses decreasedlgligt$2,812,000 in 2003 from $2,856,000 in 20@Raddition, as a result of the
termination of the peramivir program effective J@% 2002, we recorded a non-cash impairment [6$873,900 in 2002 related to the
influenza patents. There were no impairment chargesrded in 2003.

The net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@33%42,700,000, or $0.72 per share, compared &b lass of $16,929,000, or $0.96
per share in 2002.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2001

Collaborative and other research and developmesniee decreased 100.0% to $0 in 2002 from $7,786r0Z001, primarily due to a
change in accounting estimate following Ortho-MdNRkiarmaceutical, Inc. (Ortho-McNeil) and The R3hnson Pharmaceutical Research
Institute’s (RWJPRI) notice of termination of thesdwide license agreement with us to develop aadket products to treat and prevent
viral influenza. As a result of this terminationewecognized all remaining deferred revenues apdreses related to this agreement during
second and third quarters of 2001. Interest aneratitome decreased 48.1% to $1,774,524 in 2002 $8,420,658 in 2001, primarily due to
a reduction in cash from the funding of operatiand a lower interest rate environment in 2002.

Research and development expenses increased 18 $£85,473,491 in 2002 from $13,091,057 in 2001. iflkeease in expenses is
primarily attributable to the clinical trial expesssincurred to complete a Phase Il trial for pavénmprior to the termination of this program
in June 2002, plus animal studies related to pefiamnd our other programs.

General and administrative expenses increased & %%,855,804 in 2002 from $2,608,392 in 2001. ifleeease is primarily due to an
increase in expenses related to the adoption wfcklsolder rights plan, insurance and other pradesd fees. Royalty expense decreased
100.0% to $0 in 2002 from $443,697 in 2001. This
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decrease is directly attributable to the changecoounting estimate resulting from the terminatbour worldwide license agreement by
Ortho-McNeil and RWJPRI for our neuraminidase iitoity peramivir. As a result of the terminationtbfs program effective June 25, 2002,
we also recorded a non-cash impairment loss of $803n 2002 related to the influenza patents. &egre no impairment charges recorded
in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revenues sinCatheany'’s inception. Our operations have principb#ien funded through various
sources, including the following:

* public offerings and private placements of equitg debt securities,

e equipment lease financing,

« facility leases,

 collaborative and other research and developmeareagents (including licenses and options for lieshs
» research grants and

* interest income.

In addition, we have attempted to contain costsraddce cash flow requirements by renting scienéi§uipment and facilities,
contracting with other parties to conduct certa@search and development and using consultantsxXpéeEto incur additional expenses,
potentially resulting in significant losses, as eamtinue to pursue our research and developmeinitest and undertake additional preclinical
studies and clinical trials of compounds which hbagen or may be discovered. We also expect to sdostantial expenses related to the
filing, prosecution, maintenance, defense and erfoent of patent and other intellectual properiynes.



On June 25, 2002, we announced we were discongjrthendevelopment of peramivir, our investigatioor@l influenza neuraminidase
inhibitor designed to treat and prevent influen¥fer terminating the development of peramivir, ttempany streamlined its operations in
order to conserve its resources and provide a faimgeframe in which to advance its other programs.

On August 5, 2002, at the request of Dr. CharleBugyg, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer &dJ. Claude Bennett, our
President, Chief Operating Officer and Medical Biog, our Compensation Committee and board of thre@pproved a 25% reduction in
their salaries, effective August 1, 2002. On Decendy 2003, the Compensation Committee and boadit@dtors restored their salaries to
the full amount in effect prior to August 1, 200his change became effective on January 1, 200#helevent of any change of control of the
Company, any cumulative salary reductions durimgpttriod from August 1, 2002 through December BD32vould become due and
payable to them. The aggregate monthly amounteoféduction was $14,677.

On October 24, 2003, our compensation committeedvtat pay Dr. Charles E. Bugg, our Chairman anéfCExecutive Officer, $484,5(
as consideration for the cancellation of optionis iy Dr. Bugg to purchase 170,000 shares of oargon stock. The expiration date of the
options was November 18, 2003, and the exercise pfithe options was $6.00 per share.

The Company invests its excess cash principally.B. marketable securities from a diversified puitf of institutions with strong credit
ratings and in U.S. government and agency billsratds, and by policy, limits the amount of crediposure at any one institution. These
investments are generally not collateralized antureawithin three years. The Company has not redlany losses from such investments. In
addition, at December 31, 2003, approximately $4illon was invested in the Merrill Lynch Premierstitutional Fund, which invests
primarily in commercial paper, U.S. government agéency bills and notes, corporate notes, certdiaf deposit and time deposits. The
Merrill Lynch Premier Institutional Fund is not ingd. At December 31, 2003, our cash, cash equiisaénd securities held-to-maturity were
$25.7 million, a decrease of $10.4 million from Bewer 31, 2002, principally due to the funding wfrent operations. We raised an
additional $21.3 million of capital during Febru&904 through a registered offering of our commimelsto selected institutional investors.
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We have financed some of our equipment purchagkdsedse lines of credit. We currently have a $800,general line of credit with our
bank, secured by a pledge of $600,000 in market®darities. There was nothing drawn against thesds of December 31, 2003. In July
2000, we renegotiated our lease for our currerilitias, which will expire on June 30, 2010. We bkaan option to renew the lease for an
additional five years at the current market rateffiect on June 30, 2010 and a one-time optiopriminate the lease on June 30, 2008 for a
termination fee of approximately $124,000. The ée@s amended effective July 1, 2001 for an additi@,200 square feet, requires us to pay
monthly rent starting at $33,145 per month in 2091 and escalating annually to a minimum of $47 @& month in the final year, plus our
pro rata share of operating expenses and reakdatas in excess of base year amounts. As ptredéase, we have deposited a U.S.
Treasury security in escrow for the payment of esmtt performance of other obligations specifiethimlease. This pledged amount is
currently $390,000, which will be decreased by 866,annually throughout the term of the lease.

In February 2002, we completed a renovation foragmately $2.6 million to add two chemistry labtmaes and purchase additional
equipment. Currently, there are no plans for addili renovations.

As a result of the reduction in our staff durindyJ2002, we have approximately 14,000 square féekoess space, which is currently
being subleased.

At December 31, 2003, we had long-term operatiagdeobligations, which provide for aggregate mimimpayments of $594,897 in
2004, $605,139 in 2005 and $573,031 in 2006. Thbkgations include the future rental of our opergfacility.

We plan to finance our needs principally from tbkofwing:
« our existing capital resources and interest eaoneithat capital;
< payments under collaborative and licensing agreésneith corporate partners; and

» lease or loan financing and future public or prvéihancing.

We believe that our available funds will be suffiti to fund our operations at least through 20@iwvéter, this is a forward looking
statement, and there may be changes that wouldicenavailable resources significantly before sirole tOur long-term capital
requirements and the adequacy of our availablesfuvill depend upon many factors, including:

« the progress of our research, drug discovery amdldement programs;

» changes in existing collaborative relationships;



« our ability to establish additional collaborativationships;

« the magnitude of our research and development gnasgjr

 the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicel trials to identify drug candidates;

« competitive and technological advances;

« the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatapprovals;

« the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent claims;

« our dependence on others for development and coomtization of our product candidates, and

« successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strategy.

In 2003, our operations consumed approximatelyGELADO per month, but we expect that our monthghassed by operations will
continue to increase for the next several yearsing2004, we plan to both expand our existingicihprograms and initiate clinical
programs for several new disease indications. Thdd#ional trials and the related manufacturirgrspnnel resources and testing required to
support these studies will consume significanttehpésources and significantly increase our expeasd our net loss. As of December 31,
2003, we had $25.7 million in cash, cash equivalend securities. We raised an additional $21.4omibf capital during February 2004 to
provide the resources necessary to continue thelafmwent of our existing programs, while prudemtigintaining our cash position. We
expect our monthly burn rate to
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increase to approximately $2 million by mid-2004 vee get our Phase Il trial underway for T-celkiemia patients. This monthly burn rate
could increase more as the year progresses antlire fyears depending on many factors, includingability to raise additional capital, the
progress of our BCX-1777 clinical trials for bothcéll leukemia and CTCL, our ability to move BCX88through the preclinical testing
required to file an IND and begin clinical triafmd the progression of our discovery programs.

We will be required to raise additional capitactmplete the development and commercializatioruofooirrent product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional satd securities or collaborative or other arrangets&ith corporate partners or from other
sources, may not be available when needed or orstacceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities,
with terms and prices significantly more favorathlan those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or
adversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxisng stockholders. In addition, collaborativesaigements may require us to transfer ce
material rights to such corporate partners. Insigfit funds may require us to delay, scale-baaNiorinate certain of our research and
development programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not paritgpn transactions that generate relationships witonsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred girastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’), which would have been established
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet ageaments or other contractually narrow or limitedpgmses. As of December 31, 2003, we are
not involved in any material unconsolidated SPBféibalance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enforceable legally binding obligations as of December 310205ome of the figures we include in
this table are based on management’s estimateasandhptions about these obligations, including thaiation, the possibility of renewal,
anticipated actions by third parties, and othetoiec Because these estimates and assumptions@esarily subjective, the enforceable and
legally binding obligations we will actually pay fature periods may vary from those reflected i thble.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $3,692,00! $ 594,89 $1,706,92 $1,390,18! $ 0
Purchase Obligatior 1,687,85. 487,85: 600,00( 600,00( 0

Other Lon¢-Term Liabilities Reflected on tr



Compan’s Balance Sheet Under GA/ 300,00( 0 0 0 300,00(
Total $5,679,85! $1,082,75! $2,306,92 $1,990,18! $300,00(

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accounting policiesgbaern the application of accounting principlesigrally accepted in the United
States, which were utilized in the preparation wffinancial statements. Certain accounting paigiezolve significant judgments and
assumptions by management that have a materiatiopahe carrying value of certain assets andliligs; management considers such
accounting policies to be critical accounting pelc The judgments and assumptions used by managamecbased on historical experience
and other factors, which are believed to be reddenader the circumstances. Because of the nafuhe judgments and assumptions made
by management, actual results could differ frons¢h@dgments and estimates, which could have ari@atapact on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the results of operation

We believe the following critical accounting poésiaffect our more significant judgments and edtsased in the preparation of our
financial statements.
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Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance \Ei@ Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10&Revenue RecognitiqiSAB No. 104").
Research and development revenue on cost-reimbaréexgreements is recognized as expenses areddcu to contractual limits.
Research and development fees, license fees andtarie payments are recognized as revenue wheairthi@égs process is complete, the
Company has no further continuing performance alilijs and has completed its performance unddethes of the agreement, in
accordance with SAB No. 104. License fees and moilespayments received under licensing agreemieatste related to future performa
are deferred and taken into income as earned beerdtimated drug development period. Recognizaezhtees and profit are subject to
revisions as these contracts or agreements proggressnpletion. Revisions to revenue or profitresties are charged to income in the period
in which the facts that give rise to the revisi@tbme known.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

We carry our held-to-maturity securities at amedizost, as adjusted for other-than-temporary ieslin market value. In determining if
and when a decline in market value below amortzest is other-than-temporary, we evaluate the ntaxeditions and other key measures
for our held-to-maturity investments. Future adeerkanges in market conditions could result indess an inability to recover the carrying
value of the held-to-maturity investments that maybe reflected in an investment’s current cagwalue, thereby possibly requiring an
impairment charge in the future.

Deferred Taxes

We have not had taxable income since incorporatrah) therefore, we have not paid any income taxh@e deferred tax assets related
to net operating loss carryforwards and researdndamelopment carryforwards, and have recordeduatian allowance to reduce our
deferred tax assets to the amount that is moryltkan not to be realized. While we have considéuture taxable income and ongoing
prudent and feasible tax planning strategies inss$8g the need for the valuation allowance, iretrent we were to determine that we would
be able to realize the deferred tax assets inutuee in excess of the net recorded amount, arsad@nt to the deferred tax asset would
increase income in the period such determinatiom wade. Likewise, should we determine that we waoldbe able to realize all or part of
the net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjrst to the deferred tax asset would be chargetttme in the period such determination
made.

Patents and License

Patents and licenses are recorded at cost andiagtboin a straight-line basis over their estimateeful lives or 20 years, whichever is
lesser. These costs are reviewed periodically dor@ance with Statement of Financial Accountingh8éads No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“Statnt No. 144") to determine any impairment thatdse® be recognized.

Risk Factors

An investment in our stock involves a high degfa&sk. You should consider carefully the followigks, along with all of the other
information included in our other filings with tfgecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgy our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may atspair our business operations. If we
are unable to prevent events that have a negaffeetdrom occurring, then our business may suffergative events are likely to decre.



our revenue, increase our costs, make our finaneislilts poorer and/or decrease our financial sg#én and may cause our stock price
decline. In that case, you may lose all or a pdya@ur investment in our common stock.
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Risks Relating to Our Business

We have incurred substantial losses since our inth@p in 1986, expect to continue to incur such l@ssand may never be profitable

Since our inception in 1986, we have not been fatolé. We expect to incur additional losses forftreseeable future, and our losses
could increase as our research and developmemtseffimgress. As of December 31, 2003, our accumualiideficit was approximately $104.7
million. To become profitable, we must successfdiiyelop drug candidates, enter into profitableagrents with other parties and our drug
candidates must receive regulatory approval. Wibese other parties must then successfully manufaeind market our drug candidates. It
could be several years, if ever, before we recaiyalties from any future license agreements oemeres directly from product sales.

If we fail to obtain additional financing, we mayebunable to complete the development and commeimatibn of our product candidate
or continue our research and development programs.

To date, we have financed our operations primérilgn sale of our equity securities and, to a leeséent, revenues from collaborations
and interest. In 2003, our operations consumedoappately $1,000,000 per month, but we expect thiatmonthly cash used by operations
will continue to increase for the next several ge@uring 2004, we plan to both expand our existilngcal programs and initiate clinical
programs for several new disease indications. Thdddional trials and the related manufacturirgrspnnel resources and testing required to
support these studies will consume significanttedpésources and significantly increase our exgeasid our net loss.

As of December 31, 2003, we had $25.7 million ishca&ash equivalents and securities. We raisedditianal $21.4 million of capital
during February 2004 to provide the resources rsacggo continue the development of our existimegpams, while prudently maintaining
our cash position. We expect our monthly burn rat@crease to approximately $2 million by mid-2084 we get our Phase Il trial underway
for T-cell leukemia patients. This monthly burnerabuld increase more as the year progresses datliie years depending on many factors
including, our ability to raise additional capittie progress of our BCX-1777 clinical trials fath T-cell leukemia and CTCL, our ability to
move BCX4208 through the preclinical testing required te &én IND and begin clinical trials, and the praggien of our discovery progran
Our long-term capital requirements and the adeqoéoyr available funds will depend upon many fastincluding:

« the progress of our research, drug discovery amdldement programs;

» changes in existing collaborative relationships;

< our ability to establish additional collaborativationships;

« the magnitude of our research and development gnagyr

 the scope and results of preclinical studies aimical trials to identify drug candidates;

« competitive and technological advances;

 the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatapprovals;

» the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent claims;

« our dependence on others for development and coamization of our product candidates; and

« successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strategy.

We will be required to raise additional capitactmplete the development and commercializatioruofooirrent product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional satd securities or collaborative or other arrangetsi&ith corporate partners or from other
sources, may not be available when needed or orstacceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities,
with terms and prices significantly more favorathlan those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or
adversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition, collaborativeseigements may require us to transfer ce
material rights to such corporate partn:
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Insufficient funds may require us to delay, scaekbor eliminate certain of our research and deraknt programs.
We have not commercialized any products or techiggds and our future revenue generation is uncertain

We have not yet commercialized any products ormeldyies, and we may never be able to do so. Gnankee from collaborative
agreements is dependent upon the status of odirpcatand clinical programs. If we fail to advanthese programs to the point of being
to enter into successful collaborations, we will receive any future milestone or other collabeeapayments.

Any future revenue directly from product sales vabdépend on our ability to successfully compleieichl studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs.

If our development collaborations with other partdail, the development of our drug candidates viié delayed or stoppe
We rely heavily upon other parties for many impottstages of our drug development programs, inotydi

 discovery of proteins that cause or enable biokigieactions necessary for the progression of ideade or disorder, called enzyme
targets;

« license or design enzyme inhibitors for developnaendrug candidates;

» execution of some preclinical studies and lateestégyelopment for our compounds and drug candidates
< management of our clinical trials, including medizenitoring and data management;

* management of our regulatory function; and

« manufacturing, sales, marketing and distributionwfdrug candidates.

Our failure to engage in successful collaborati@inany one of these stages would greatly impacbuosiness. If we do not license enzy
targets or inhibitors from academic institutionsrom other biotechnology companies on acceptadtad, our product development efforts
would suffer. Similarly, if the contract researalganizations that conduct our initial or late-statigical trials or manage our regulatory
function breached their obligations to us, this ldadelay or prevent the development of our drugdadates.

Even more critical to our success is our abilitgiter into successful collaborations for the Ettage clinical development, regulatory
approval, manufacturing, marketing, sales andidigion of our drug candidates. Our general stratedo rely upon other parties for all of
these steps so that we can focus exclusively okdheareas of our expertise. For some smaller nmictukets, we may perform these steps
ourselves and outsource those functions where wtbave the internal expertise. This heavy rekampon third parties for these critical
functions presents several risks, including:

* these contracts may expire or the other partiéisg@ontract may terminate them;

* our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdabies, including those of our competitors;
« we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration;

« our partners may not devote sufficient capitalesources towards our drug candidates; and

< our partners may not comply with applicable goveentrregulatory requirements.

Any problems encountered with our current or fujpaetners could delay or prevent the developmentioicompounds, which would
severely affect our business, because if our comg®do not reach the market in a timely manneat atl, we may never receive any
milestone, product or royalty payments.
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If the clinical trials of our drug candidates failpur drug candidates will not be marketed, which wd result in a complete absence
product related revenu

To receive the regulatory approvals necessanhfsale of our drug candidates, we or our licenseest demonstrate through preclinical
studies and clinical trials that each drug can@idasafe and effective. If we or our licenseesumable to demonstrate that our drug
candidates are safe and effective, our drug catetidaill not receive regulatory approval and witk the marketed, which would result in a
complete absence of product related revenue. Thiealltrial process is complex and uncertain. Bsesof the cost and duration of clinical
trials, we may decide to discontinue developmermgrotiuct candidates that are either unlikely torsgood results in the trials or unlikely to
help advance a product to the point of a meaningglihboration. Positive results from preclinicaldies and early clinical trials do not ens
positive results in clinical trials designed tompérapplication for regulatory approval, called gial clinical trials. We may suffer significant
setbacks in pivotal clinical trials, even afterliesiclinical trials show promising results. Any ofir drug candidates may produce undesirable
side effects in humans. These side effects couldecas or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delahalt clinical trials of a drug candidate.
These side effects could also result in the FDfoozign regulatory authorities refusing to appréve drug candidate for any targeted
indications. We, our licensees, the FDA or foraiggulatory authorities may suspend or terminatgaai trials at any time if we or they
believe the trial participants face unacceptabbdtheisks. Clinical trials may fail to demonstrditat our drug candidates are safe or effective.

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensive. We orl@ensees incur substantial expense for, andtdesignificant time to, preclinical
testing and clinical trials, yet cannot be certhiat the tests and trials will ever result in tieenenercial sale of a product. For example, clin
trials require adequate supplies of drug and sefiigpatient enrollment. Delays in patient enrolfinean result in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our licenseesesgfally complete clinical trials for our produetntiidates, we or our licensees might not
file the required regulatory submissions in a tiymalkanner and may not receive regulatory approvahie drug candidate.

If we or our licensees do not obtain and maintaiogernmental approvals for our products under devehoent, we or our partners will nc
be able to sell these potential products, which vaosignificantly harm our business because we weékeive no revenue

We or our licensees must obtain regulatory apprbefdre marketing or selling our future drug pragudf we or our licensees are unable
to receive regulatory approval and do not markesedirour future drug products, we will never reteeany revenue from such product sale
the United States, we or our partners must obtBiA Bpproval for each drug that we intend to comnadize. The FDA approval process is
typically lengthy and expensive, and approval igemeertain. Products distributed abroad are albgest to foreign government regulation.
The FDA or foreign regulatory agencies have notraygd any of our drug candidates. If we or ourrgees fail to obtain regulatory approval
we will be unable to market and sell our futuregdpmoducts. We have several drug products in varsbages of preclinical and clinical
development; however, we are unable to determirenwifiever, any of these products will be comnadlgiavailable. Because of the risks
and uncertainties in biopharmaceutical developnmntdrug candidates could take a significanthyglemtime to gain regulatory approval tf
we expect or may never gain approval. If the FDRage regulatory approval of our drug candidates,moanagement’s credibility, our
company’s value and our operating results may suffeen if the FDA or foreign regulatory agencippieve a drug candidate, the approval
may limit the indicated uses for a drug candidait@/@r may require post-marketing studies.

The FDA regulates, among other things, the receaplng and storage of data pertaining to poteptiatmaceutical products. We
currently store most of our preclinical researctadsd our facility. While we do store duplicate @spof most of our clinical data offsite, we
could lose important preclinical data if our fagilincurs damage. If we get approval to marketmatential products, whether in the United
States or internationally, we will continue to hebfect to extensive regulatory requirements. Thegairements are wide ranging and govern,
among other things:

« adverse drug experience reporting regulations;

e product promotion;
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« product manufacturing, including good manufactugangctice requirements; and

« product changes or modifications.

Our failure to comply with existing or future regtory requirements, or our loss of, or changeprieviously obtained approvals, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaibeaae will not receive product or royalty reveniiege or our licensees do not receive
approval of our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we notified the FDA that we submittexbrrect data for our Phase |l studies of BCXapglied to the skin for cutaneous T-
cell ymphoma and psoriasis. The FDA inspectechuddavember 1995 and issued us a List of InspedtiObaervations, Form FDA 483,
which cited our failure to follow good clinical prtices. The FDA also inspected us in June 1996 .fd¢es was on the two 1995 Phase |l
dose-ranging studies of topical BCX-34 for the tment of cutaneous Tell lymphoma and psoriasis. As a result of thegtigation, the FD.
issued us a Form FDA 483, which cited our failuréallow good clinical practices. BioCryst is nantper developing BC-34; however, as



consequence of these two investigations, our oggand future clinical studies may receive increasedtiny, which may delay the
regulatory review process.

We may be unable to establish sales, marketing distribution capabilities necessary to successfultynmercialize products we may
successfully develo

We currently have no marketing capability and medior third-party sales or distribution capalakt If we successfully develop a drug
candidate and decide to commercialize it ourselatger than relying on third parties, as we cutyeintend to do in the United States for
BCX-1777, we may be unable to establish markesatgs and distribution capabilities necessary torgercialize and gain market
acceptance for that product.

If our drug candidates do not achieve broad marlatceptance, our business may never become profit

Our drug candidates may not gain the market acnepteequired for us to be profitable even if thegcessfully complete initial and final
clinical trials and receive approval for sale bg #DA or foreign regulatory agencies. The degremarfket acceptance of any drug candidates
that we or our partners develop will depend onmlmer of factors, including:

 cost-effectiveness of our drug candidates;
 their safety and effectiveness relative to altémeareatments;
« reimbursement policies of government and thirdyppayers; and

« marketing and distribution support for our drug didates.

Physicians, patients, payers or the medical comiyimigeneral may not accept or use our drug categleven after the FDA or foreign
regulatory agencies approve the drug candidatesirlfirug candidates do not achieve significantketasicceptance, we will not have enough
revenues to become profitable.

We face intense competition, and if we are unatldecompete effectively, the demand for our produdtsny, may be reduced

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriehagkly competitive and subject to rapid and sulitshtechnological change. We fa
and will continue to face, competition in the lisérg of desirable disease targets, licensing afalgle drug candidates, and development and
marketing of our product candidates from acadensttutions, government agencies, research institsitand biotechnology and
pharmaceutical companies. Competition may alse drsn, among other things:

« other drug development technologies;
* methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdiséase, including vaccines; and

< new small molecule or other classes of therapagnts.

Developments by others may render our product datel or technologies obsolete or noncompetitive.
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We are performing research on or developing pradiaetthe treatment of several disorders includircell mediated disorders (T-cell
cancers, psoriasis, and rheumatoid arthritis),icaagcular, oncology, and hepatitis C, and theeesamumber of competitors to products in
research pipeline. If one or more of our compeditproducts or programs are successful, the méoketur products may be reduced or
eliminated.

Compared to us, many of our competitors and pateodimpetitors have substantially greater:
« capital resources;
» research and development resources, including peetand technology;

« regulatory experience;



» preclinical study and clinical testing experience;
< manufacturing and marketing experience; and

« production facilities.

Any of these competitive factors could reduce dedrfan our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our gitectual property rights or secure rights to patsrof others, the value of those righ
would diminish

Our success will depend in part on our ability #melabilities of our licensors to obtain patenttpetion for our products, methods,
processes and other technologies to preserveane srecrets, and to operate without infringingpttegrietary rights of third parties. If we or
our partners are unable to adequately protectfor@mour intellectual property rights for our pumts, methods, processes and other
technologies, the value of the drug candidatesviiedicense to derive revenue would diminish. Aiddially, if our products, methods,
processes and other technologies infringe the figpy rights of other parties, we could incur gahsal costs. The U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office has issued to us a number of pagnts for our various inventions and we havéderlsed several patents from various
institutions. We have filed additional patent apgations and provisional patent applications with thS. Patent and Trademark Office. We
have filed a number of corresponding foreign pasgmiications and intend to file additional foreimd U.S. patent applications, as
appropriate. We cannot assure you as to:

« the degree and range of protection any patentsa¥fild against competitors with similar products;
 if and when patents will issue; or

« whether or not others will obtain patents claimagpects similar to those covered by our patenicgijuns.

If the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office upholdepiatissued to others or if the U.S. Patent andemark Office grants patent
applications filed by others, we may have to:

« obtain licenses or redesign our products or presegsavoid infringement;
 stop using the subject matter claimed in thosempsiter
e pay damages.

We may initiate, or others may bring against dgdtion or administrative proceedings relatednteliectual property rights, including
proceedings before the U.S. Patent and TrademditeOANy judgment adverse to us in any litigatmmother proceeding arising in
connection with a patent or patent application douhaterially and adversely affect our businessfaial condition and results of operations.
In addition, the costs of any such proceeding nmeagubstantial whether or not we are successful.

Our success is also dependent upon the skills, lettm® and experience, none of which is patentableur scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requilreraployees, consultants, advisors and collabosatwenter into confidentiality agreements
that prohibit the disclosure of confidential infation to anyone outside of our company and regligelosure and assignment to us of their
ideas, developments, discoveries and inventionss&lagreements may not provide adequate protdotionr trade secrets, know-how or
other proprietary information in the event of amauthorized use or disclosure or the
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lawful development by others of such informatiomd & any of our proprietary information is dischms our business will suffer because our
revenues depend upon our ability to license ourtelogy and any such events would significantlyamphe value of such a license.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel dail to attract and retain additional key personnehe development of our drug candidat
and the expansion of our business will be delayedmpped

We are highly dependent upon our senior manageamehscientific team, the loss of whose servicedtrigpede the achievement of our
development and commercial objectives. Competithorkey personnel with the experience that we neqjigi intense and is expected to
continue to increase. Our inability to attract aethin the required number of skilled and expergehnmanagement, operational and scientific
personnel, will harm our business because we by these personnel for many critical functionswf business. In addition, we rely on
members of our scientific advisory board and cdmsi$ to assist us in formulating our researchdmatlopment strategy. All of the memb



of the scientific advisory board and all of our soltants are otherwise employed and each such nregnbensultant may have
commitments to other entities that may limit trerailability to us.

If users of our drug products are not reimbursedrfase, future sales of our drug products will derd

The lack of reimbursement for the use of our prodaodidates by hospitals, clinics, patients ortaiscwill harm our business. Medicare,
Medicaid, health maintenance organizations andrattiel-party payers may not authorize or otherviiadget for the reimbursement of our
products. Governmental and thipdsty payers are increasingly challenging the gridearged for medical products and services. Weatdie
sure that third-party payers would view our prodtarididates as cost-effective, that reimburseméhb&vavailable to consumers or that
reimbursement will be sufficient to allow our praticandidates to be marketed on a competitive b@sianges in reimbursement policies, or
attempts to contain costs in the health care imgestuld limit or restrict reimbursement for ouoduct candidates and would materially and
adversely affect our business, because future ptadiles would decline and we would receive lesdywet or royalty revenue.

If we face clinical trial liability claims relatedo the use or misuse of our compounds in clinicebts, our managemer's time will be
diverted and we will incur litigation costs

We face an inherent business risk of liability ciaiin the event that the use or misuse of our comg® results in personal injury or dei
We have not experienced any clinical trial liagillaims to date, but we may experience these slainthe future. After commercial
introduction of our products we may experiencedgsdue to product liability claims. We currentlyimain clinical trial liability insurance
coverage in the amount of $5.0 million per occuceeand $5.0 million in the aggregate, with an add#l $2.0 million potentially available
under our umbrella policy. The insurance policy maybe sufficient to cover claims that may be magiainst us. Clinical trial liability
insurance may not be available in the future orptable terms, if at all. Any claims against ugareless of their merit, could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, becausgdtion related to these claims would strain fisancial resources in addition to consuming
the time and attention of our management.

If our computer systems fail, our business will sef

Our drug development activities depend on the sgcimtegrity and performance of the computer syss supporting them, and the
failure of our computer systems could delay ougditavelopment efforts. We currently store mostwfpreclinical and clinical data at our
facility. Duplicate copies of all critical data astored off-site in a bank vault. Any significarggitadation or failure of our computer systems
could cause us to inaccurately calculate or losalata. Loss of data could result in significaniagle in our drug development process and
any system failure could harm our business andabip@s.
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If, because of our use of hazardous materials, viglate any environmental controls or regulationsdahapply to such materials, we m;
incur substantial costs and expenses in our remédidia efforts

Our research and development involves the conttaige of hazardous materials, chemicals and varamisactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reiguis governing the use, storage, handling anddedpof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury frone$e materials could occur. In the event of andeatj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osoregces. Compliance with environmental laws andlegpns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgréaild adversely affect our results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
Our stock price is likely to be highly volatile arttle value of your investment could decline siguodintly

The market prices for securities of biotechnologgnpanies in general have been highly volatile aagl oontinue to be highly volatile in
the future. Moreover, our stock price has fluctddtequently, and these fluctuations are oftenralated to our financial results. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2003, thev&2k range of the market price of our stock wamf®.82 to $9.41 per share. The follow
factors, in addition to other risk factors desadilire this section, may have a significant impacttemarket price of our common stock:

< announcements of technological innovations or nesdyicts by us or our competitors;
« developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;
« status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreements;

» we or our licensees achieving or failing to achidegelopment milestones;



* publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluksrelating to products under development by rusus competitors;
« regulatory developments in both the United Statekfareign countries;

* public concern as to the safety of pharmaceutioadyrcts;

 actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiagults;

» changes in financial estimates or recommendatigrseburities analysts;

» economic and other external factors or other désasir crises; and

* period-to-period fluctuations in our financial résu

Because stock ownership is concentrated, you arfteotnvestors will have minimal influence on stockhder decisions

As of February 27, 2004, our directors, executiffie@rs and some principal stockholders and thiiliztes beneficially owned
approximately 42.7% (directors and officers own8d2b) of our outstanding common stock and commockseéquivalents. As a result, the
holders, if acting together, are able to signifttamfluence matters requiring stockholder apptoirecluding the election of directors. This
concentration of ownership may delay, defer or eré\a change in our control.

We have anti-takeover provisions in our corporateacter documents that may result in outcomes withieh you do not agree

Our board of directors has the authority to isgu¢ou3,178,500 shares of undesignated preferret stod to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of thdsees without further vote or action by our stodkkes. The rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the futurg ma
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adversely affect the rights of the holders of comratock. The issuance of preferred stock could nitakere difficult for third parties to
acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

In addition, our certificate of incorporation prdes for staggered terms for the members of thedbafadtirectors and supermajority
approval of the removal of any member of the badrdirectors and prevents our stockholders fronmgdby written consent. Our certificate
also requires supermajority approval of any amemdrogthese provisions. These provisions and gihevisions of our by-laws and of
Delaware law applicable to us could delay or makeendifficult a merger, tender offer or proxy casttewvolving us.

In June 2002, our board of directors adopted &hbtmder rights plan and, pursuant thereto, issuetepred stock purchase rights
(“Rights”) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. If teggd, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who aegmore than 15% (19.9% for William W. FeatheringilDirector who currently owns
more than 13%, but owned more than 15% at the tfimdRights were put in place) of our common statkesms not approved by the board
of directors.

We have never paid dividends on our common stocH dn not anticipate doing so in the foreseeableufigt

We have never paid cash dividends on our stockcivently intend to retain all future earningsaiify, for use in the operation of our
business. Accordingly, we do not anticipate payiagh dividends on our common stock in the forededature.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-looking statementsch are subject to risks and uncertainties.s€iferward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of words suctmaey,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “articipates,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” the negative of these weradr similar expressions. Statements that desotibéuture plans, strategies, intentions,
expectations, objectives, goals or prospects aefalward-looking statements. Discussions contgitihese forward-looking statements are
principally contained in “Business” and “Managenigmiscussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiordaResults of Operations” above, as
well as any amendments we make to those sectidiisgs with the SEC.

” o ”ou ” o ” o ”

These statements reflect our current views witheesto future events and are based on assumpatimhsubject to risks and uncertainties
which may cause our actual results, performan@ebievements to be materially different from antyfa results, performances or
achievements expressed or implied by the for-looking statements. Given these uncertainties,sjmuld not place undue reliance on tt



forward-looking statements. We discuss many ofahiesks in greater detail in “Risk Factors.” Alsbese forward-looking statements
represent our estimates and assumptions only tag afate of this document.

You should read this discussion completely and #ithunderstanding that our actual future resulty be materially different from what
we expect. We may not update these forward-lookiatements, even though our situation may changeeifuture. We qualify all of our
forward-looking statements by these cautionaryestants.

26

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The primary objective of our investment activitisgo preserve principal while maximizing the inaome receive from our investments
without significantly increasing our risk. We inte&xcess cash principally in U.S. marketable séiesrfrom a diversified portfolio of
institutions with strong credit ratings and in UgBvernment and agency bills and notes, and bgydlmit the amount of credit exposure at
any one institution. Some of the securities we ghwe may have market risk. This means that a chémgrevailing interest rates may cause
the principal amount of the investment to fluctudte minimize this risk, we schedule our investrseonthave maturities that coincide with
our expected cash flow needs, thus avoiding thd teeeedeem an investment prior to its maturityedaiccordingly, we believe we have no
material exposure to interest rate risk arisingfimur investments. Therefore, no quantitative tabdisclosure is provided.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2003 2002
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,940,95 $ 13,824,28
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,087,12. 10,624,51
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 675,90 482,62(
Total current asse 20,703,98 24,931,42
Securities hel-to-maturity 5,704,39! 11,714,15
Furniture and equipment, n 3,507,70! 4,557,28
Patents and licenses, less accumulated amortizafti®202 in 2003 and $201 in 20 179,46: 97,52:
Total asset $ 30,095,55 $ 41,300,38
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl $ 640,34¢ ¢ 256,03t
Accrued expense 467,69( 443,52:
Accrued vacatiol 240,37. 173,01!
Total current liabilities 1,348,41. 872,57
Deferred revenu 300,00t 300,00(

Stockholder’ equity:

Preferred stock: shares authorized — 5,000,000
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, $.01 parealu
shares authorized — 1,800,000; shares issued and
outstanding — none
Series B Junior Participating Preferred stock, $.08r
value; shares authorized — 21,500; shares issued
and outstandin— none

Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authorized —
45,000,000; shares issued and outstanding —
17,871,28— 2003; 17,657,09— 2002 178,71: 176,57:



Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

132,928,20 131,910,93
(104,659,77) (91,959,69)
2844714 40,127,81

$ 30,095,55. § 41,300,38

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2003

2002

2001

Revenues:
Collaborative and other research and developi $ 653,25 ¢ 0 $ 7,736,97
Interest and othe 980,24 1,774,52 3,420,65!
Total revenue 1,633,50. 1,774,52. 11,157,63

Expenses:
Research and developmt 11,521,98 15,473,49 13,091,05
General and administratiy 2,811,60! 2,855,80: 2,608,39:
Impairment of patents and licens 0 373,90( 0
Royalty expens 0 0 443,69
Interest 0 0 464
Total expense 14,333,58 18,703,19 16,143,61
Net loss $(12,700,08) $(16,928,67) $(4,985,97)
Net loss per common she § (.79) § (:96) $ (:28)
Weighted average shares outstanc 17,703,44 17,642,74 17,560,14

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Additional Total Stock-
Common Paid-in Accumulated Holders’
Stock Capital Deficit Equity
Balance at December 31, 20C $175,36¢ $131,350,33 $ (70,045,04) $ 61,480,65
Exercise of stock options, 46,027
shares, ne 461 101,90° 102,36¢

Employee stock purchase plan sales, 24,122 s 241 93,13: 93,37:
Compensation co: 123,28 123,28
Net loss (4,985,97)) (4,985,97))
Balance at December 31, 20C 176,07( 131,668,66 (75,031,02) 56,813,71
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 50,127 s 501 122,08( 122,58:
Compensation co: 120,19( 120,191
Net loss (16,928,67) (16,928,67)




Balance at December 31, 2002 176,57: 131,910,93 (91,959,69) 40,127,81
Exercise of stock options, 186,228 shares 877,19¢ 879,06(
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 27,964 s 20,39¢ 20,67¢
Compensation co: 119,67¢ 119,67¢
Net loss (12,700,08) (12,700,08)
Balance at December 31, 20C $178,71: $132,928,20 $(104,659,77) $ 28,447,14
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
Net loss $(12,700,08) $(16,928,67) ¢ (4,985,97)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,101,31. 1,246,41 1,046,03
Impairment of patents and licens 0 373,90( 0
Amortization of patents and licens 20z 201 3,39¢
Non-monetary compensation cc 119,67¢ 120,19( 123,28
Deferred expens 0 0 443,69¢
Deferred revenu 0 0 (7,736,97))
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (193,28) (66,06°%) 264,07
Accounts payabl 384,31: (361,549 (186,512
Accrued expense 24,16¢ (688,769 803,20(
Accrued vacatiol 67,35 (59,710 67,28(
Net cash used in operating activitie (11,196,34) (16,364,05) (10,158,48)
Investing activities:
Purchases of furniture and equipm (51,729 (407,88() (2,604,379
Purchases of patents and licen (82,140 (128,599 (65,439
Purchase of marketable securit (11,573,96) (8,085,17) (26,433,62)
Maturities of marketable securiti 20,121,10 19,822,08 49,485,49
Net cash provided by investing activities 8,413,27 11,200,43 20,382,05
Financing activities:
Principal payments of debt and capital lease otitiga 0 0 (9,78¢)
Exercise of stock optior 879,06( 0 102,36¢
Employee stock purchase plan stock s 20,67¢ 122,58: 93,37:
Net cash provided by financing activities 899,73¢ 122,58: 185,95.
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivz (1,883,33) (5,041,03) 10,409,52
Cash and equivalents at beginning of y 13,824,28 18,865,32 8,455,80:
$ 11,940,95 $ 13,824,28 $ 18,865,32

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Accounting Policies

The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corpamgthe “Company”), is a biotechnology companyused on designing, optimizing
and developing novel small molecule drugs thatlblay enzymes essential for cancer, cardiovasamdrautoimmune diseases and viral
infections. The Company has four research projaafifferent stages of development from early digg to an ongoing Phase | trial of the
Company’s most advanced drug candidate, BCX-17Milé/the prospects for a project may increase agthject advances to the next stage
of development, a project can be terminated atstenye of development. Until the Company generaesnues from either a research project
or an approved product, its ability to continuesgesh projects is dependent upon its ability tegdiinds.

Securities Hel-to-Maturity

The Company is required to classify debt and egéturities as held-to-maturity, available-for-saleérading. The appropriateness of
each classification is reassessed at each repalditeg As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Coynglassified all debt and equity
securities as held-to-maturity. The only disposisi@f securities classified as held-to-maturitated to actual maturities or securities called
prior to their maturity. At December 31, 2003 a2, respectively, securities held-to-maturity dstesl of $13,791,523 and $22,338,669 of
U.S. Treasury and Agency securities carried at dmsal cost. All of the non-current portions of setes held-to-maturity are U.S. Agency
securities that mature in 2004-2006. The estimtgiedvalue of all held-to-maturity securities atd@mber 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
was approximately $13,879,086 and $22,640,061.Adrepany has pledged $600,000 in securities to cavefuture draw against its line of
credit (see Note 5) and has deposited a U.S. Tineasaurity of $390,000 in escrow for the paymdmeat and performance of other
obligations specified in its lease dated July I®)®(see Note 5). The amount deposited in escrothélease decreases $65,000 annually
throughout the term of the lease.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. R&dien is computed using the straight-line methdith estimated useful lives of five
and seven years. Laboratory equipment, office eqeiy, leased equipment and software are depreaatd life of five years. Furniture
and fixtures are depreciated over a life of seveary. Leasehold improvements are amortized oveethaining lease period.

Patents and License

Patents and licenses are recorded at cost andiagtboin a straight-line basis over their estimateeful lives or 20 years, whichever is
lesser. The Company periodically reviews its patamd licenses for impairment in accordance wiglteBtent of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 14#ccounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Asset§'Statement No. 144”) to determine any impairméuatt t
needs to be recognized. During the quarter endeel 30, 2002, the Company abandoned the developrhertamivir, its influenza
neuraminidase inhibitor. As a result, the Compampgnized an expense of $373,900 during the quamtied June 30, 2002 related to the
patents for the neuraminidase inhibitors, as thelonger have any readily determinable value toGbmpany.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accounting for ino®taxes in accordance with Statement of Finargabunting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Tax(“Statement No. 109”). Under this method, defem@edassets and liabilities are determined baseatifterences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assetdiabilities and are measured using the endatethtes and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.
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Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance \E@ Saff Accounting Bulletin No. 10&Revenue RecognitiqiSAB No. 104").
Research and development revenue on cost-reimbardergreements is recognized as expenses areddcup to contractual limits.
Research and development fees, license fees aadtarie payments are recognized as revenue wheaithiegs process is complete,



Company has no further continuing performance altilbgs and has completed its performance undeethes of the agreement, in
accordance with SAB No. 104. License fees and moifespayments received under licensing agreemieatste related to future performa
are deferred and taken into income as earned beerdtimated drug development period. Recognizaezhtees and profit are subject to
revisions as these contracts or agreements proggressnpletion. Revisions to revenue or profitresties are charged to income in the period
in which the facts that give rise to the revisi@téme known. The Company has not received anytieydlom the sale of licensed
pharmaceutical products.

Net Loss Per Shar

The Company computes net loss per share in acomedaith Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&tds128 Earnings per Share
Net loss per share is based upon the weighted geveramber of common shares outstanding duringehiegh Diluted loss per share incluc
common equivalent shares from unexercised stodkrepand shares expected to be issued under thpayrs employee stock purchase
plan. For all periods presented, diluted loss paresdoes not include the impact of potential comstwares outstanding, as the impact of
those shares is anti-dilutive.

Statements of Cash Flow

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, timragainy considers cash equivalents to be all cdshirnenoney market accounts or
investments in debt instruments with maturitiethoée months or less at the time of purchase.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatider Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28counting for Stock Issued to
Employee("APB No. 25"). Under APB No. 25, the Company’sctamption and employee stock purchase plans quadifjoncompensatory
plans. Under Financial Accounting Standards Boaterpretation 44Accounting for Certain Transactions involving St@dmpensation, an
Interpretation of APB No. 2, outside directors are considered employees fgrqaes of applying APB No. 25, if they are eledigdhe
shareholders. Consequently, no compensation expensmployees and directors is recognized. Steskdd to non-employees is
compensatory and compensation expense is recogmimtstt Statement of Financial Accounting Standatols123,Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensati¢(“Statement No. 123") as amended by Statementradrsial Accounting Standards No. 148counting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclos(f8tatement No. 148").

The following table illustrates the pro forma etfea net loss and net loss per share had the Congppilied the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement No. 123 for the years erdecember 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. See Note Adaagsumptions used to compute the
pro forma amounts.

2003 2002 2001
Net loss as reporte $(12,700,08) $(16,928,67) $(4,985,97)
Deduct total stock-based employee compensationmesgpe
determined under Statement No. : (624,699 (1,730,49)) (2,671,12)
Pro forma net los $(13,324,78)  _$(18,659,16) _$(7,657,10)
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2003 2002 2001

Amounts per common shai

Net loss per share, as repor $(.72) ¢ (.96) $(.28)
Pro forma net loss per shs $(.79) $(1.0€) $(.44)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae amounts reported in the financial stateimeActual results could differ from
those estimate:



Note 2 — Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted of the follonangecember 31:

2003 2002
Furniture and fixture $ 330,67 $ 330,67
Office equipmen 567,14: 561,01:
Software 490,03 490,03
Laboratory equipmer 3,368,18! 3,335,83!
Leased equipmel 62,71 62,71
Leasehold improvemen 4,646,90 4,633,65!
9,465,65: 9,413,92:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (5,957,94) (4,856,63))
Furniture and equipment, n § 3,507,70: $4,557,28

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intateg#ssets to be held and used are reviewed foriimeat when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amousuch assets may not be recoverable. Determinatimcoverability is based on an estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from tise of the asset and its eventual dispositiotihdrevent that such cash flows are not
expected to be sufficient to recover the carryimgpant of the assets, the assets are written dowhreipestimated fair values. Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangible asseltetdisposed of are reported at the lower of aagrgmount or fair value less cost to sell.

Note 3 — Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

The Company invests its excess cash principally.B marketable securities from a diversified pif of institutions with strong credit
ratings and in U.S. government and agency billsreotds and, by policy, limits the amount of crekiposure at any one institution. These
investments are generally not collateralized antureawithin less than three years. The Companynbasealized any losses from such
investments. At December 31, 2003, $4,375,949 meessted in the Merrill Lynch Premier Institutiorfaind, which invests primarily in
commercial paper, U.S. government and agencydaiésnotes, corporate notes, certificates of depaosittime deposits. The Merrill Lynch
Premier Institutional Fund is not insured.

Note 4 — Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of the followingextember 31:

2003 2002
Accrued clinical trials $355,95° $300,52!
Stock purchase plan withholdin 49,19¢ 28,02:
Accrued othe 62,53¢ 114,97t
Accrued expense $467,69( $443,52:
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Note 5 — Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies
The Company had an unused line of credit of $5@#@®ecember 31, 2003.
The Company has the following lease obligationdetember 31, 2003:
Operating
Leases
2004 $ 594,89

2005 605,13¢



2006 573,03:

2007 528,75(
2008 544,61
Thereaftel 845,57:
Total minimum payment $3,692,00!

Rent expense for operating leases was $603,996, 3®5 and $484,227 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, resedetiThe commitment for
operating leases is primarily related to the baidiease, which expires in June 2010. The leasamnanded effective July 1, 2001 for
additional space, requires monthly rents of $33Hddinning in July 2001 and escalating annuallg toinimum of $47,437 per month in the
final year. The Company has an option to renewahse for an additional five years at the curreatk®t rate on the date of termination and a
one-time option to terminate the lease on Jun2@083, subject to a reasonable termination fee.

On August 5, 2002, at the request of the compeasatmmittee, our Board of Directors approved aictidn in salary of 25% for both
Dr. Charles E. Bugg, Chairman and Chief Executitécér and Dr. J. Claude Bennett, President, CBipérating Officer and Medical
Director, effective August 1, 2002. In the eventiao change of control of the Company, any cumeaasialary reductions up to the date of
change of control would become due and payable nTdmthly amount of the reduction was $14,677 comdit©On December 8, 2003, the
Board of Directors approved the recommendatiomefdompensation committee to restore their salésidseir previous amounts effective
January 1, 2004, leaving the cumulative reductiod249,509 outstanding in the event of a changmiirol.

Note 6 — Income Taxes

The Company has not had taxable income since incatipn and, therefore, has not paid any incomeRaferred tax assets of
approximately $46,600,000 and $45,750,000 at Deeeidib, 2003 and 2002, respectively, have been némed principally for the net
operating loss and research and development @=&ditforwards, and have been reduced by a valuatiowance of $51,800,000 and
$45,750,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respBctThe valuation allowance will remain at thd Amount of the deferred tax asset
until it is more likely than not that the relateck tbenefits will be realized.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had net oper&isygand research and development credit carrgiasv(“Carryforward Tax
Benefits”) of approximately $95,300,000 and $9,900, respectively, which will expire at variouse®beginning in 2005 and continuing
through 2023. Use of the Carryforward Tax Benefillt be subject to a substantial annual limitataure to the change of ownership
provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. The aridumaitation is expected to result in the expiratiof a portion of Carryforward Tax
Benefits before utilization, which has been consdeyy the Company in its computations under StatgrNo. 109. Additional sales of the
Company’s equity securities may result in furthenw@al limitations on the use of the Carryforwarc Benefits against taxable income in
future years.

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

In June 2002, the Board of Directors adopted aksmider rights plan and, pursuant thereto, issuetepred stock purchase rights
(“Rights™) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. If taggd, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who
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acquires more than 15% (19.9% for William W. Featiwll, a Director who currently owns more thar?3but owned more than 15% at the
time the Rights were put in place) of the Compargsimon stock on terms not approved by the Boaflirefctors. The rights are not
exercisable until the distribution date, as defimethe Rights Agreement by and between the CompandyAmerican Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, as Rights Agent. The Rights will expir¢hatclose of business on June 24, 2012, unles$iihaexpiration date is extended or
unless the rights are earlier redeemed or exchamgéte Company.

Each Right entitles the registered holder to pusetfeom the Company one one-thousandth of a sli&@eres B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B”), par value $0.001gf&re, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtstmaent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemabéeh share of Series B will be entitled to a divid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
per share of common stock. In the event of liquaateach share of Series B will be entitled tagment of 1,000 times the payment made
per share of common stock. Each share of Seriedl Bave 1,000 votes, voting together with the coomnstock. Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in Wwtgbares of common stock are exchanged, each sh@geries B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constomk.

In November 1991, the Board of Directors adopted1i®91 Stock Option Pla“Plar”) for key employees and consultants of



Company and reserved 500,000 shares of common fipidsuance under the Plan. The Plan was approyeide stockholders on
December 19, 1991. The original term of the Plas featen years and included provisions for issearfdoth incentive stock options and
non-statutory options. The exercise price of ogtigranted under the Plan shall not be less thafathmarket value of common stock on the
grant date. Options granted under the Plan gegyearadit 25% after one year and monthly thereaftea pro rata basis over the next three y
until fully vested after four years and expire years after the grant date. Options are generedigtgd to all full-time employees.

The Plan was amended and restated in Februarytd3Ffect the following changes: (i) divide the iiato two separate incentive
programs: the Discretionary Option Grant Prograuh thie Automatic Option Grant Program, (ii) increéis® number of shares of the
Company’s common stock available for issuance uttgePlan by 500,000 shares and (iii) expand thel lef benefits available under the
Plan. The Board amended the Plan on December 23,tb9ncrease the number of shares issuable wheétlan by 500,000 shares and
subsequently amended and restated the Plan intitetg on February 8, 1994. On March 16, 1995 Bbard authorized another 500,000
shares for issuance under the Plan. The Plan vimeguently amended and restated effective Mar&B%7, which amendment and
restatement included an increase of 1,000,000 sh@he Plan (as so amended and restated) wasifarttended March 1, 1999 to increase
the share reserve by 400,000 shares. The Boarddmuemd restated the Plan in its entirety on M& @000, which increased the reserved
shares by 1,200,000 and extended the term of HrefBt ten years from the date of the amendmeris. fBistatement was approved by the
Company’s stockholders on May 17, 2000. The autmnogition grant program grants options to purcHas€00 shares to new nemployee
Board members and an additional 10,000 shares bByowar such period of continued service. The wgsand exercise provisions of options
granted under the Plan are subject to acceleratitire event of certain stockholdapproved transactions, or upon the occurrenceGkfamge
in Control as defined by the Plan.
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The following is an analysis of stock options foe three years ended December 31, 2003:

Weighted

Options Options Average
Available Outstanding Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 1,045,31. 2,620,99; $ 10.3(
Options grante: (522,600 522,60( 4.5t
Options exercise (61,32) 2.82
Options cancele 60,99: (60,997 11.5¢
Balance December 31, 20 583,70t 3,021,27. 9.4z
Options grante: (443,73 443,73! 1.44
Options cancele 466,52 (466,52)) 8.14
Balance December 31, 20 606,49 2,998,48! 8.4t
Options grante: (546,000 546,00( 1.27
Options exercise (186,22) 4.72
Options cancele 440,32! (440,32Y) 8.8¢
Balance December 31, 20 500,81 2,917,93 7.2¢

There were 1,979,152, 2,214,954 and 1,986,560 mpgercisable at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 28§dectively. The weighted-
average exercise price for options exercisable$9agl, $9.67 and $9.69 at December 31, 2003, 2002@01, respectively.

The following table summarizes, at December 313209 price range: (1) for options outstanding,thenber of options outstanding,
their weighted-average remaining life and theirghééd-average exercise price; and (2) for optiomsasable, the number of options
exercisable and their weighted-average exercisepri

Outstanding Exercisable
Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0to $ & 809,16¢ 9.0 ¢ 1.1C 83,53 $ 1.1
3to € 468,39( 5.1 4.0¢ 357,83¢ 4.2z
6to ¢ 1,026,96! 4.9 7.3¢€ 927,71( 7.35
9to 12 12,18¢ 3.8 9.67 11,24: 9.64
12 to 1t 280,68! 3.3 14.1¢ 280,68 14.1¢



15to 1€ 93,89 3.0 16.3¢ 93,89« 16.3¢

21to 24 207,02( 6.0 22.8¢ 206,60: 22.87
24t0 3C 19,62( 6.4 26.87 17,64: 26.87
0to 3C _ 291793 5.9 7.2¢ 197915 9.71

As of December 31, 2003, there were an aggregade0il,747 shares reserved for future issuancer lnadle the Plan and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) discussed in Note 8.

The Company follows APB No. 25 in accounting fottbthe Plan and the ESPP and, accordingly, doesenognize any compensation
cost related to options granted to employees oremoployee Directors. The Company has adopted gwodiure requirements of Statement
No. 123, as amended by Statement No. 148. Sintens¢at No. 123 is only applied to options grantiéelr& 994, the pro forma disclost
should not necessarily be considered indicativieitoire pro forma results when the full four-yeastieg (the period in which the
compensation cost is recognized) is included irdikelosure in 2002. The fair value of each opt®astimated on the grant date using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing method with the foliogy weighted-average assumptions used for grar808, 2002 and 2001, respectively:
no dividends; expected volatility of 104.4, 104nti®2.5 percent; risk-free interest rate of 3.6,&81d 4.6 percent; and expected lives of five
years. The weight-average grant-date fair values of options gradtegthg 2003 under the Plan and ESPP were $2.135@u39,
respectively. The compensation cost recorded foong issued to non-employee consultants was $769%120,190 and $123,289 for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 ctasghe.
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans

On January 1, 1991, the Company adopted an empiejiemment plan (“401(k) Plannder Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue (
covering all employees. Employee contributions fb@ynade to the 401(k) Plan up to limits establidhethe Internal Revenue Service.
Company matching contributions may be made at ig@eation of the Board of Directors. The Companydmenatching contributions of
$158,425, $217,097 and $216,897 in 2003, 2002 86d,2espectively.

On May 29, 1995, the stockholders approved an eyeplstock purchase plan (“ESPP”) effective Febrdad995. On May 15, 2002, the
stockholders approved an amendment to the ESR#3¢ove an additional 200,000 shares and elimihatdanuary 2005 termination date.
The Company has reserved a total of 400,000 slefui@smmon stock under the ESPP, of which 182,9@8eshremain available for purchase
at December 31, 2003. Eligible employees may aitbap to 15% of their salary to purchase commonksat the lower of 85% of the
beginning or 85% of the ending price during thersianth purchase intervals. No more than 3,000 shaay be purchased by any one
employee at the six-month purchase dates and ntogegmay purchase stock having a fair market vatithe commencement date of
$25,000 or more in any one calendar year. There @8/964, 50,127 and 24,122 shares of common stackased under the ESPP in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, at a weighted avepage per share of $0.74, $2.45 and $3.87, respyti

Note 9 — Collaborative and Other Research and Dewghment Contracts

The Company granted Novartis Corporation, form&ilya-Geigy Corporation (“Novartis”), an option i890 to acquire exclusive
licenses to a class of inhibitors arising from egsk performed by the Company by February 1991.cftien was exercised and a $500,000
fee was paid to the Company in 1993. Milestone gaymare due upon approval of a new drug applicalibe Company will also receive
royalties based upon a percentage of sales ofemujtant products. Up to $300,000 of the initi@ feceived is refundable if sales of any
resultant products are below specified levels aaslldeen recorded as deferred revenue. This agrebamheen inactive for several years.

On November 7, 1991, the Company entered intora jesearch and license agreement with The Uniyev§iAlabama at Birmingham
(“UAB”). UAB performed specific research on Complem Factors for the Company for a period of appnately three years in return for
research and license fees. The agreement was edddgca new agreement on July 18, 1995 grantin@tmpany a worldwide license in
exchange for funding certain UAB research and slgari any royalties or sublicense fees arising ftbejoint research. On November 17,
1994, the Company entered into another agreemeatjfint research and license agreement on inflae@uraminidase granting the
Company a worldwide license. Under this agreentaetCompany funded certain UAB research and UABeshi any royalties or
sublicense fees arising from the joint researcte Chmpany completed its research funding requiyetthé agreements for both projects in
1998, but is still required to pay minimal annuetéhse fees and share any future royalties with UAB

On December 23, 2003, the Company transferredDor®nsional Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3DP), a whollyned subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson, certain rights related to complement sygtdibitors discovered during our collaborativeearch agreement with 3DP, which was
terminated by BioCryst on October 18, 2003. Bio€rgseived an initial payment from 3DP, and wilteeve royalties on any future sales of
complement inhibitors covered under the assignn



In April 1999, the Company entered into an agreeamétth Sunol Molecular Corporation. This agreemegiuires Sunol to conduct
research and supply the Company with protein tarfpetdrug design to expedite the discovery of dewg candidates designed to inhibit
tissue factor/factor Vlla for the Company’s cardisgular program.

In June 2000, the Company licensed a series ofipwmtkibitors of purine nucleoside phosphorylageR NP, from Albert Einstein College
of Medicine of Yeshiva University and Industrialdarch, Ltd, New Zealand. The lead drug candidata this collaboration is BCX-1777.
The Company has the rights to develop and ultimatistribute this, or any other, drug candidate thaght arise from research on these
inhibitors.
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The Company has agreed to pay certain milestone@atg for future development of these inhibitoes; pertain royalties on sales of any
resulting product, and to share in future paymesteived from other third-party collaborators,nfya

In June 2000, the Company licensed intellectugb@ry from Emory University related to the hepatifl polymerase target associated
with hepatitis C viral infections. Under the terofshe agreement, the research investigators frororfg provide the Company with materials
and technical insight into the target. The Complaay agreed to pay Emory royalties on sales of esmiting product and to share in future
payments received from other third party collabarstif any.

Note 10 — Subsequent Events

On February 4, 2004, Registrant entered into aghant Agency Agreement with Leerink Swann & Compiangonnection with a
registered direct offering of 3,571,667 sharesotommon stock at an offering price of $6.00 pers. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSieurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, the Securities Act, in connegtitina shelf takedown from the Company’s regisbrastatement on Form S-3 (333-
111226), filed on December 16, 2003 and which beceffective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2004, Registrant entered into ak3fuirchase Agreement with Caduceus Private Invegsril, LP, Caduceus Private
Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossowerdi-L.L.C. As part of this agreement, Registraas granted these investors the right to
appoint a member to its board of directors effects of the closing of the offering. On February2®4, the Company announced it had
completed a $21.4 million registered direct offgrof 3,571,667 shares of its common stock to agafunstitutional investors.

Note 11 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 13&gByers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other@&osiment Benefits—an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, and 106i5 statement revises employers’ disclosures gbeusion plans and other
postretirement benefit plans to provide more infation about pension plan assets, obligations, itgpefments, contributions and net ben
cost. This statement retains the disclosures reday the originally issued Statement 132 and regdurther disclosures, including
information describing the types of plan assetgd$tment strategy, measurement date(s), plan dbinga cash flows, and components of net
periodic benefit cost recognized during interimipes. SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) is effectivefiioancial statements with fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2003, except for discksiiinformation about foreign plans and disclesof estimated future benefit payments,
which are effective for fiscal years ending aftend 15, 2004. The adoption of this statement haidhpact on the Company’s financial
statement disclosures.

On May 15, 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, tAeting for Certain Financial Instruments with Giteristics of both Liabilities
and Equity,” which establishes standards for cfgisgj and measuring as liabilities certain freediag financial instruments that embody
obligations of the issuer and have characteristid®th liabilities and equity. The statement de§iran obligation as “a conditional or
unconditional duty or responsibility on the partlo¢ issuer to transfer assets or to issue itdyegbares.” SFAS No. 150 is effective for all
financial instruments created or modified after Mdy 2003, and otherwise effective at the beginoinge first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this staterdiehbot have a significant impact on the Compamg&ults of operations or financial
position.

On April 30, 2003, the FASB issued Statement ofRial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 149, “Ardement of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”arder to provide for more consistent reporting afittacts as either freestanding derivative
instruments subject to SFAS No. 133 in its entiretyas hybrid instruments with debt host contractd embedded derivative features. SFAS
No. 149 is effective for contracts entered intorardified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging ietahips designated after June 30, 2(

The adoption of this statement did not have a figit impact on the Company’s results of operationfinancial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Ctidation of Variable Interest Entities,” (revisece@ember 2003), an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin 51, “ConsolidationFiriancial Statements,” which addresses consolidatfo/ariable interest entities (“VIE”)
by business enterprises. This statement is reqginridancial statements of public entities thatdinterests in VIEs or potential VIEs
commonly referred to as special-purpose entitiepéoiods ending after December 15, 2003. Forthkiotypes of entities, application is
required in financial statements for periods endiftgr March 15, 2004. The Company believes thabittoption of FIN No. 46 has no impact
on the results of operations or financial position.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Aacting Standards No. 148,
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensation — Transition and DisclogtBtatement No. 148”). This statement addressesitian
methodologies for companies who intend to adopfdhesaluation methodology of Statement No. 128tfeir employee stock-based
compensation, as well as additional annual andteyadisclosure requirements for stock-based caragton. The new disclosure rules are
effective for interim or annual periods ending afiecember 15, 2002 and are provided in Notes 17afitie Company does not expect there
to be a material impact on its financial positioesults of operations or cash flows as a resudidopting this accounting standard.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation MgGuarantor Accounting and Disclosure Requirement&foarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Otl(“FIN No. 45”). This interpretation modifies the accounting treaitrfer certain guarantees a
is effective for all guarantees issued or modiéigr December 31, 2002. The new disclosure rukegffective for interim or annual periods
ending after December 15, 2002. The Company digxpérience a material impact on its financial fiosj results of operations or cash
flows as a result of adopting this accounting séadd

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of FinbAcieounting Standards No. 14&¢ccounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities("SFAS 146"), which is effective for exit or dispasactivities that are initiated after December3102. The Company
adopted this statement on July 1, 2002. On Jul2@02, the Company streamlined its operations,diedtits workforce from 75 employees
to 45 employees in order to conserve its resouandsprovide a longer timeframe in which to advaiteether programs. As a result of early
implementation of SFAS 146, the Company recognakexpenses related to this reduction in staff@apensation expense during the third
guarter of 2002. The total compensation paid in22@lus benefits, related to this staff reducticasvapproximately $325,000.

Note 12 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2003 Quarters

Revenue: ¢ 30¢ $ 26€ $ 222 $ 83¢

Net loss (2,789 (3,257) (3,409 (3,250

Net loss per shai (.16) (.18 (.19 (.18
2002 Quarters

Revenue! § 53¢ $ 461 § 41z § 368

Net loss (5,61¢6) (5,167) (3,415 (2,73¢6)

Net loss per shai (.32 (.29 (.19 (.15)

Net loss and net loss per share for the years 806832002 differed from the total of the individgaiarters due to rounding.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she&i®06fyst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of December 8@032nd 2002, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equitycash flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2003. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these financial
statements based on our auc



We conducted our audits in accordance with audigtagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about whether the financial statementsraeedf material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and, 20@Pthe results of its operations and its cashidlfor each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity w&itbounting principles generally accepted in thetdé¢hBtates.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG

Birmingham, Alabama
January 23, 2004, except for Note 10, as to whiehdate is
February 18, 2004
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procesithat are designed to ensure that informaétating to BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. required to be disclosed in our periodic fisnunder the Securities Exchange Act is recordexdtgssed, summarized and reported in a
timely manner under the Securities Exchange Adi9&4. We carried out an evaluation, under the stigien and with the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenesslué design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based uporetizdiiation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chit@fancial Officer concluded that, as of
December 31, 2003, the Company'’s disclosure can&notl procedures are effective to ensure thatrivdtion required to be disclosed by
BioCryst in the reports filed or submitted by itden the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amensleecorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specifiechia 8EC’s rules and forms, and include controlsmodedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by BioCryssiuth reports is accumulated and communicatecet€tmpany’s management, including
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and CRiefncial Officer of BioCryst, as appropriate ttoal timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financial reporting that occurred during theader ended December 31, 2003 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, BioCryst's internal controler financial reporting.

PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE R EGISTRANT

The directors and executive officers of the Compamyas follows:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. 62 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

J. Claude Bennett, M.D. 70 President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Direcémd
Director

Michael A. Darwin 42 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

William W. Featheringill (1)(2) 61 Director

Edwin A. Gee, Ph.D. (1)(2) 84 Director

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D. (4) 39 Director

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D. 69 Director

John A. Montgomery, Ph.D. (3) 79 Director

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr. 63 Director

William M. Spencer, 11 (1)(2) 83 Director



Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.D. 54 Director

Q) Member of the Compensation Committee (“Compensatiommittee”).
(2) Member of the Audit Committee (“Audit Committee”).

) John A. Montgomery held the positions of Seniore/Rresident, Secretary and Chief Scientific Offioetil his retirement effective
January 31, 2002. He will continue to serve asraddr until the 2004 Annual Meetin

4) Carl L. Gordon was elected to the Board on MarcPO®4, effective as of February 18, 2004 in corinaatith the Stock Purchase
Agreement with OrbiMed Advisors, LL(

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.Dwas named Chairman of the Board, Chief Executiiec&fand Director in November 1993 and President i
January 1995. Dr. Bugg relinquished the positioRm@sident in December 1996 when Dr. Bennett jothedCompany in that position. Prior
to joining the Company, Dr. Bugg had served
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as the Director of the Center for Macromoleculaystallography, Associate Director of the Comprehaen€ancer Center and Professor of
Biochemistry at The University of Alabama at Birmgiam (“UAB”) since 1975. He was a Founder of thenpany and served as the
Company’s first Chief Executive Officer from 198988 while on a sabbatical from UAB. Dr. Bugg alsoved as Chairman of the
Company'’s Scientific Advisory Board from JanuanB63o November 1993. He continues to hold the fwositf Professor Emeritus in
Biochemistry and Molecular Genetics at UAB, a gosihe has held since January 1994.

J. Claude Bennett, M.Dwas named President and Chief Operating Offic&dnember 1996 and elected a Director in January.199
Since 2001, Dr. Bennett has also served as theddleDirector. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Bett was President of The University of
Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB”) from October 1993 B@cember 1996 and Professor and Chairman of tharieent of Medicine of UAB
from January 1982 to October 1993. Dr. Bennetteston the Company'’s Scientific Advisory Board fré889-96. He is a former co-editor
of theCecil Textbook of Medicinend former President of the Association of AmeriPéysicians. He is the immediate past chair of the
Scientific Advisory Committee of the Massachus&tneral Hospital, a member of the Scientific AdwsBoards of Zycogen, LLC and
Aptamera, Inc., and continues to hold the positibBistinguished University Professor Emeritus &B) a position he has held since Jant
1997.

Michael A. Darwinjoined BioCryst in June 2000 as Controller. EffeetNovember 1, 2002, Mr. Darwin was appointed CRiafincial
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer. Prior to joinBigCryst, from June 1990 to June 2000, Mr. DarwasuChief Financial Officer of a
privately held company in the food services indudtte began his career at Ernst & Young and spenytesrs in public accounting practice.

William W. Featheringillvas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. FeathetinigiChairman of the Board, since June 1995, etEbnic
Healthcare Systems, a software company, and Presidkief Executive Officer and director, since 39@f Private Capital Corporation, a
venture capital company. Mr. Featheringill was @inain and Chief Executive Officer of MACESS Corpamat which designs and installs
paperless data management systems for the managenhdustry, from 1988 to November 1995. MACES$pOmtion merged with Sunge
Data Systems in late 1995. From 1985 to Decemb@4,1dr. Featheringill was the developer, Chairmad Bresident of Complete Health
Services, Inc., a health maintenance organizatioiclwgrew, under his direction, to become one eflingest HMOs in the southeastern
United States. Complete Health Services, Inc. wgsised by United HealthCare Corporation in Jun@419

Edwin A. Gee, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in August 1993. Dr. Gee, vdtived in 1985 as Chairman of the Board and Chiefcutive
Officer of International Paper Company, has bedivaas an executive in biotechnology, pharmaceal&iod specialty chemical companies
since 1970. He is Chairman Emeritus and a direxft@SI| Pharmaceuticals, Inc., one of the leadimgdaihnology companies for the diagn
and treatment of cancer.

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in March 2004. Dr. Gordoa feunding General Partner of OrbiMed Advisors L.LC
an asset management firm focused on the globathweaé industry, since 1998, and was previouskréos biotechnology analyst at Mehta
and Isaly, the predecessor firm to OrbiMed, fror83:9997. Dr. Gordon received a Bachelor's degremfHarvard College, a Ph.D. in
molecular biology from the Massachusetts Instibft&echnology, and was a Fellow at the Rockefdlleiversity.

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in August 1994. Dr. Horowtes Vice President of Business Development ananitig at
Bristol-Myers Squibb from 1991 until his retirementApril 1994 and previously was Vice Presidentafensing at the same company from
1990 to 1991. Prior to that he spent over 30 ywitts The Squibb Institute for Medical Research, tmesently as Vice President Research,
Planning, & Scientific Liaison. He has been an pelelent consultant in pharmaceutical sciences asidéss development since his
retirement from Bristol-Myers Squibb in April 199%e serves on the Boards of Directors of Avigew,,IGenaera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Palatin Technologies, Inc., DOV Pharmaceuticals)\\@e, Inc., and NitroMed, In



John A. Montgomery, Ph.Dwas a Founder of BioCryst and has been a DireatoeNovember 1989. He was the Secretary and Chief
Scientific Officer since joining the Company in Felry 1990. He was Executive Vice President frofor&ary 1990 until May 1997, at whi
time he was named Senior Vice President. Dr. Mantyy retired as an officer of the Company effecflaauary 31, 2002, but remains on
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the Board of Directors. Prior to joining the Compabr. Montgomery served as Senior Vice Presidé@authern Research Institute (“SRI”)
of Birmingham from January 1981 to February 1998.ddntinues to hold the position of Distinguisheikstist at SRI, a position he has held
since February 1990.

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jryas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. Sherrilivegl as President of R. J. Reynolds (“RJR”) Asieifita based
in Hong Kong, where he oversaw RJR operations adksi, including licensing, joint ventures andil fine of operating companies from
August 1989 to his retirement in October 1994. Pmanagement positions with RJIR include Senior Wresident of Marketing for R.J.
Reynolds International, President and Chief Exeeubfficer of R.J. Reynolds Tabacos de Brazil, Brekident and General Manager of R.J.
Reynolds Puerto Rico.

William M. Spencer, lllhas been a Director of the Company since its incephMr. Spencer, who is retired, is also a privateestor in
Birmingham, Alabama. Mr. Spencer is a Founder ef@ompany, and served as Chairman of the Boattea€bmpany from its founding in
1986 until April 1992. He co-founded and operateatibh Industries from 1946 through its merger iGtenuine Parts Company in 1976. He
has founded several businesses and has served Bodind of Directors of numerous public and privaigporations.

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.Dvas elected a Director in February 1993. Dr. Stesrbeen an independent pharmaceutical and
biotechnology consultant since 1989, having a bimsxkground in business development, medical miagend regulatory affairs. He was
formerly Chairman, President and CEO of Advancedrapeutics Communications International, a leading regulatory group, and served
as associate director of medical affairs at Matiahoratories, and medical director at Ciba Consuptermaceuticals. Dr. Steer serves or
Board of Directors of Techne Corporation and sdvatigately held companies.

In accordance with the terms of the Company’s @Geate of Incorporation, the Board of Directors l@en divided into three classes with
members of each class holding office for stagg#resk-year terms. Dr. Bugg'’s, Dr. Montgomery’s, Bordon’s and Dr. Gee’s terms expire
at the 2004 annual meeting, at which time Dr. Monigry and Dr. Gee will not be eligible for re-elentdue to age limits established by the
Board of Directors. Mr. Featheringill’s, Mr. Spemseand Mr. Sherrill's terms expire at the 2005 aalnmeeting, and Dr. Bennett’s, Dr.
Horovitz's, and Dr. Steer’s terms expire at the@@@nual meeting (in all cases subject to the ieleend qualification of their successors or
to their earlier death, resignation or removal)eAth annual stockholder meeting, the successting irectors whose terms expire are
elected to serve from the time of their electiod guoalification until the third annual meeting edckholders following their election and ur
a successor has been duly elected and qualifiesiekter, the number of directors may be decreasadyatime either by the stockholders or
by a majority of the directors then in office, lmunly to eliminate vacancies existing by reasorhefdeath, resignation, removal or expiration
of the term of one or more directors. No persoril ffeaelected as a director who has reached Higo70" birthday. Persons who are serving
as directors on the date they reach thei Brthday may complete the current term of officelivéctor for which they have been elected but
shall not be elected to serve another term astditeEhe provisions of the Company’s Certificatdraforporation governing the staggered
Director election procedure can be amended onlg Slyareholder’s vote of at least 75% of the eligiliting securities. There are no family
relationships among any of the directors and exeeuwaifficers of the Company. The Board has by netsmh established the number of
directors of the Company at ten (10) commencingdid&; 2004. Currently, seven of our directors (M&sSeatheringill, Gee, Gordon,
Horovitz, Sherrill, Spencer and Steer) are indepands defined by the current Nasdagq rules.

The Company has an Audit Committee, consisting eé&is. Featheringill, Gee and Spencer, which goresble for the review of
internal accounting controls, financial reportimglaelated matters. The Audit Committee also recemufs to the Board the independent
accountants selected to be the Company’s auditarseviews the audit plan, financial statementsaundit results. The Board has adopted an
Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter tlesgtsnall the applicable rules of the Nasdaq Naltibtzaket and the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee Chartarlmafound on the Company’s website at www.biocegsh. The Audit Committee
members are “independent” directors as definedhbyNasdaqg National Market listing standards inafés of the date hereof and meet
Nasdars financial literacy requirements for audit comt@é members. The Board of Directors has deterntimgtdMir. Featheringill qualifies
as the “audit committee financial expert”. Upon éxgiration of Dr. Gee’s term at the 2004 Annualetfieg, the Board has made a
determination to recruit another outside Board memitho would also meet
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the requirements of a “financial expert”. Afterdtadditional Board member has been recruited aaduadely understands the Company’s
financial records, Mr. Featheringill has determitieat he will step down from the Audit Committee.

The Company also has a Compensation Committeestimysof Messrs. Featheringill, Gee and Spencee. Gdmpensation Committee



responsible for the annual review of officer comgaion and other incentive programs and is autedria award options under the
Company'’s Stock Option Plan. The Board has adopt@dmpensation Committee Charter that meets alippéicable rules of the Nasdaq
National Market and the Securities and Exchange@ission. The Charter can be found on the Com’s website at www.biocryst.com.
The Compensation Committee members are “indepehdeattors as defined by the Nasdaq Nationaldgstandards in effect as of the date
hereof.

The Company has a Nominating Committee comprisel @idependent directors with terms not expirimghe current year. The current
members of the committee are Messrs. Featheritpllovitz, Sherrill, Spencer, and Steer. The NoriirgaCommittee nominates persons for
election or re-election as directors. The Boardadmspted a Nominating Committee Charter that maétee applicable rules of the Nasdaq
National Market and the Securities and Exchange@ission. The Nominating Committee has establishedqaures/qualifications ft
selecting nominees and will consider nominees resended in writing, including biographical infornti and personal references, by
stockholders. All submissions by shareholders shbalsent directly to the Chairman of the Board,Bugg at the corporate address.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business CofttactCode”) applicable to all employees, includegecutive officers, and all
Board members. The Code is publicly available @Glbmpany’s website at www.biocryst.com. Any wasvef the Code will be disclosed
through an Form 8-K filing with the Securities daxichange Commission.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Incorporated by reference from our definitive Pr@tatement to be filed in connection with the staien of proxies for our 2004 Annu
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our definitive Pr@tatement to be filed in connection with the staion of proxies for our 2004 Annu
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from our definitive Pr@tatement to be filed in connection with the staion of proxies for our 2004 Annu
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS

Incorporated by reference from our definitive Pr@tatement to be filed in connection with the staien of proxies for our 2004 Annu
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our definitive Pr@tatement to be filed in connection with the staion of proxies for our 2004 Annu
Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

() Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10K
The following financial statements appear in Iteiwf 8his Form 1-K:
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 28
Statements of Operations for the years ended Deze&ih 2003, 2002 and 20 29
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2003, 20@22001 30

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Deme8ih 2003, 2002 and 20 31



Notes to Financial Statemer 32 to 4C
Report of Independent Audito 41

No financial statement schedules are included tscthe information is either provided in the fin@ahstatements or is not required under
the related instructions or is inapplicable anchssthedules therefore have been omitted.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On October 20, 2003, we furnished a Current Remoiform 8-K to the Securities and Exchange Comuonissgporting the Company’s
financial results for the quarter ended SeptembefB03.

On December 16, 2003, we filed a Current Repoffamn 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commisgimviding an updated
description of the Company’s business, risk factmd management’s discussion and analysis of fiabogndition and results of operations.

(c) Exhibits
Number Description
3.1 Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrdncorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Form
1C-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 datgdst 11, 199%
3.2 Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by referencExbibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the setquarter
ending June 30, 1995 dated August 11, 1!
4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwieen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Qedti€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Pgréiting Preferred
Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Rights Certifeas Exhibit B. Incorporated by reference to Eihibl to the
Compan's Form {-A dated June 17, 200
10.1 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatefiMarch 6, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Bitt89.1 to the
Compan’s Form {8 Registration Statement dated June 16, 2000 (Ratis No. 33-39484).
10.2# License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bkay Corporation (now merged into Novartis) ane t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibid0@o the Company’s Form S-1 Registration StaterfiRegistration
No. 3%-73868).
10.: Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeferto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Riegfion
Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Registration N¢-90582).
10.44 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Septemb&€38,between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Baweint
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2lt to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third geraending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1
46
Number Description
10.5# Stockholder's Agreement dated as of Septemberd98 between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Dawelot

Corporation. Incorporated by reference to ExhiBi2b to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third gelaending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

10.€ Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anLAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Regint
for office/warehouse space. Incorporated by refezdn
Exhibit 10.8 to the Compa’s Form 1-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2000 daigdst 8, 200C

10.7 Termination Agreement dated as of September 211 B@6veen Registrant and The R.W. Johnson Pharrtieedeu
Research Institute and Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutloal, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8He Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2002 daigdst 7, 2002

10.¢ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februa®0UA4, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, @aduceus
Private Investments Il, LP, Caduceus Private Imaests Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossover Fund,d.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form K dated February 17, 20(

23 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Auditors.
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002.
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct of

2002.



# Confidential treatment granted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized in the City of Birmingham, StateAddbama, on this 19th day of March,
2004.

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/Charles E. Bugg

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D.
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934 this report has been signed byalleving persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on Ma&h2004:

Signature Title(s)

/sl Charles E. Bugg Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D

/sl J. Claude Bennett President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Direcémd Directo

(J. Claude Bennett, M.D

/sl Michael A. Darwin Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and daunting
Officer), Secretary and Treasurer

(Michael A. Darwin)

/sl William W. Featheringill Director

(William W. Featheringill)

/sl Edwin A. Gee Director

(Edwin A. Gee, Ph.D.

/sl Carl L. Gordon Director

(Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D

/sl Zola P. Horovitz Director

(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.

/sl John A. Montgomery Director

(John A. Montgomery, Ph.D

s/ William M. Spencer Director

(William M. Spencer, 111)

/sl Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr. Director

(Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr



/sIRandolph C. Steer Director

(Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.L

Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.c

10.44

10.54

10.€

10.7

10.€

23
31.1
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrancorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for tleeend quarter ending June
30, 1995 dated August 11, 19¢

Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by referencExbibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 deatgdst 11, 1995
Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwleen the Company an
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rigtgent, which includes th
Certificate of Designation for the Series B Juritarticipating Preferred Stock
Exhibit A and the form of Rights Certificate as ExhB. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comp’s Form +A dated June 17, 200

1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatefiMarch 6, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thenpany’s Form S-8
Registration Statement dated June 16, 2000 (RatisirNo. 33-39484).
License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bayy Corporation (now
merged into Novartis) and the Registrant. Incorfemtdy reference to Exhibit
10.40 to the Company’s Form S-1 Registration StatértRegistration No. 33-
73868).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byaeéerto Exhibit 99.1 to the
Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement dated 14n2002 (Registration
No. 33:-90582).

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Septemb&©38,between Registrant
and Johnson & Johnson Development Corporationrhacated by reference t
Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for thigdlgquarter ending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

Stockholders Agreement dated as of September 14, 1998 betRegistrant an
Johnson & Johnson Development Corporation. Incagarby reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for thizgdlguarter ending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anlAlabama Limited
Liability Company and the Registrant for office/whouse space. Incorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s FAGrQ for the second quarte
ending June 30, 2000 dated August 8, 2!

Termination Agreement dated as of September 211 P@@veen Registrant and
The R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical Research InstindeOrtho-McNeil
Pharmaceutical, Inc. Incorporated by referencextultit 10.9 to the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2002 deigdst 7, 2002
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februarg0D4, by and among
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Caduceus Privatedtments II, LP, Caduceu:
Private Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS JunipersSower Fund, L.L.C.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Form 8-K dated
February 17, 200

Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Auditors.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z
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Sequentially



Numbered

Number Description Page
31.z Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the 53
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Sectic 54
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 55

906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

# Confidential treatment granted.
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-39483;3)751 and 33-95062)
pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In@1lStock Option Plan, as amended and restatedMarch 6, 2000, the Registration
Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-90582 and 33-950683ipiang to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Emgpe Stock Purchase Plan and the
Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-111226npeng to the shelf registration of up to $60,M@WD of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
common stock, of our report dated January 23, 280gept for Note 10 as to which the date is Felyr@8 2004, with respect to the financial
statements of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. inetlich the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the yeadesh December 31, 2003.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG

Birmingham, Alabama
March 15, 2004
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Charles E. Bugg, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BiafCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh



b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'sloésire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgutures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; an

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodighal quarter in the case of an annual repod) ilas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theveden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contragiofmancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmancial information; ani

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemnagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 19, 2004

/sl CHARLES E. BUGG

Charles E. Bugg
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael A. Darwin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BimiCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omsgitéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slossire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registganternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodighal quarter in the case of an annual repod) itlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrasstboard of directors (or persons performing theveden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contragiofmancial reporting which are



reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; ani

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveenagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 19, 2004

/sl MICHAEL A. DARWIN

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystafinaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfee period ending December 31,
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Chaule Bugg, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 12880adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@uxiegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand result of operations of the

Company.

/sl Charles E. Bugg
Charles E. Bugg

Chief Executive Officer
March 19, 2004
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystaRimaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfee period ending December
31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and ExchaBgemission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Ichiel A. Darwin, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 LS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the
best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand result of operations of the
Company.



/sl Michael A. Darwin
Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer
March 19, 2004
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